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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year ended December 31,
Amounts in thousands, except per share data

. 2007

Selected Results of Operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for 1oan 1osses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Per Share Data
Net income per common share (basic)
Net income per common share (diluted)
Book value per common share
Market value per commaon share
Cash dividends declared on common shares

Selected Balance Sheet Data
Total assets
Loans
Allowance for foan {osses
Securities
Deposits
Borrowings
Shareholders’ equity
Common shares outstanding

2006 2005

$48,900 $43.177 $33,837
24473 19,432 11,603
24426 23,745 22,234
1,550 1,550 1,850
5,940 7.638 8,190
2113 21,045 18,676
1.978 2,943 3,688
4,725 5845 6,210
$0.68 $0.85 $082
0.66 08 0.87
7.03 6.66 5.96
8.50 14.01 12.70
0.20 0.19 0.17
$752,196 9694106  $614,172
590,132 507,690 448,567
B,383 7.624 6.892
93,591 105,457 104,160
601,268 566,465 521,860
100,465 79,744 49,279
47,260 46,228 40,929
6,727 6,949 6,863

2004

$26,166
7.008
19,158
1,175
7,629
17,230
3,052
5,530

$0.80
0.75
5.36
11.06
0.13

515,417
373,580
5,856
100.357
433,898
44,279
35,868
6,689

2003

$24,895
7.028
17,867
1,600
8,343
17,329
2,698
4,583

$0.70
0.67
467
9.40
0.05

$467,419
339,755
5352
91,279
414,982
19,279
30,762
6,582

All share amounts have been restated to Include the effect of the 5% stock distributions paid on June 29, 2007, June 30, 2006, June 30, 2005,

June 30, 2004 and March 12, 2003,

Total Assets

in millions

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

Nefinterestflncone;
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To OUR
SHARFHOLDERS

As with the prior two years, this year has been an
extremely challenging time for community banks.
In 2005 and 2006, we were faced with a difficult
interest rate environment, as the Federal Reserve
aagressively raised interest rates 300 basis points
over those two years, creating a significant
increase in the cost of funds for financial
institutions. In 2007, the financial markets were
significantly impacted by the collapse of the
subprime market, which had collateral
repercussions, creating volatile pricing for financial
instruments as well as significantly reducing
market liquidity.

Based on the current economic Forecast, 2008
may be another challenging one for banks, yet the
fundamentals of Unity continue to be sound.
Wwe have remained focused on our strategic
plan of doing what we do best - True
Community Banking. Although the
performance of the Company has
been impacted by the economy,

During 2007, total assets grew 8.4 percent to $752
million, compared to $694 million at December 31,
2006. This growth in assets was due entirely to a
record year for loan volume offset in part by
declines in federal funds sold and investment
securities. Total loans grew by 16.2 percent with
commercial loans increasing 17.2 percent. A
portion of the growth In the loan portfolio was
attributed to the Company’'s decision to both
expand the SBA program and to hold more SBA
loans for long-term investment.

We are proud of our commercial and SBA
programs, which offer a wide array of products for
our customers. We believe that community
banking is all about service and flexibility; a value
proposition that sets us apart from the larger
financial service providers. Qur loan officers are
empowered to negotiate loan terms and
conditions that benefit our customers.
We lock not to complete transactions,
but to foster long-term relationships.

we have continued to grow
market share, we have
expanded our footprint

and we have continued to
improve our products, We
are stronger now than ever
before and are well positioned
for the future.

Earnings for 2007 were $4.7 million, or
$0.66 per diluted share, a 19 percent decrease
compared to $5.8 million, or $0.81 per diluted
share for 2006. Results for the year were
impacted by the Company's decision to retain a
significant portion of its SBA loan production as a
result of reduced bids on sales caused by current
market conditions. Also, during the fourth
quarter, the Company recorded a $404 thousand
after-tax charge on Freddie Mac securities
classifled as other than temporarily impaired due
to current market conditions. As a result, return on
average assets and average common equity for
2007 were (.66 percent and 10.11 percent,
compared to 0.90 percent and 13.56 percent,
respectively, for 2006.

During 2007, Unity

demonstrated its commitment

to the SBA Lending Program by

taking the program national.
We opened several loan
production offices along the Eastern
United States to increase production.
As a result, we closed approximately $80
million of SBA 7{a} loans in 2007, making this
a record year since we became a Preferred
Lender 15 years ago.

This was also 2 good year for deposit growth, as
total deposits grew 6.1 percent over the prior
year as a result of growth in time deposits. We
continued to offer extremely competitive pricing
and to guarantee to pay higher ylelds on CDs than
the larger banks. We implemented U-Deposit,
which is a remote scanner that allows small
businesses to scan checks right at their location
for deposit into their account. We also upgraded
our business software application, eCorp, to
enable our customers to effectively manage their
accounts, automate their wires and to provide




business bill payment functionality, We will
continue to aggressively add new products as
well as price our products competitively to
grow our customer base, thus giving us
additional opportunities to cross-sell products
and services.

We executed on our commitment to grow our
branch network by adding two fuil-service
branches this year. We opened our second
Pennsylvania location in Palmer Township as well
as our most recent location in Middlesex, NJ. We
now have seventeen logations and
although we continue to look to
expand in growth markets, we
will also be looking to close
branches that are not
providing adequate
returns.  In April 2008, we
will be closing our
Bridgewater branch.

if you are a depositor, you
know that many of our
branches are open seven
days a week. In addition,
Unity branches are open
longer hours to make it
rmore convenient for our
customers. Qur online
banking and bill pay
applications give our
customers access to their
accounts 24 hours a day,
seven days a week. In 2008,
we will be upgrading our
website to aflow for
automatic online account
openings to provide future

David D. Dallas
Chairman

customers access to our products through
alternative delivery channels outside of the
traditional branch network.

The Unity Commandments define our Corporate
Culture, We recognize that to be successful in
this highly competitive business, it is critical that
our employees are aligned to our
commandments and that we continually
reinforce our principles. We believe these
commandments speak for themselves. Hire the
best employees, train them well, and keep them
highly motivated. With great
employees providing the highest level
of service for our customers, increased
/  profits of the bank are sure to follow.
Banking is a commaodity business
and the only way to grow market
share is to provide excellent
service on a consistent basis.

o
?

Our vision and strategy for

Unity has not changed; we

are committed to exceptional
customer service, personal
attention, local decision-making
and concern for the financial well-
being of our customers and
shareholders. We look forward to
exceeding your expectations in
2008. We and the employees of
Unity are committed to achieving
our financial goals and ook
forward to the challenges ahead.

The Board of Directors,
management and staff thank you
and we continue to appreciate your
loyalty and support.

- G

James A, Hughes
President/CEQ




- UNITY-IN THE COMMUNITY

Unity Bank provides the top quality customer
service local restaurants need, Restaurants
like the Logan Inn and Clinton House depend
on unparalleled Merchant Services for

[ TSN o 110

<SS AN - [ i ) Ing I ! credit card processing. With Online Business
SPAT . o . Banking. Business Lines of Credit, and a
LUMEATL T e LY , variely of business accounts, Unlty offers

full service support to restaurants and
other small businesses.

Pictured left to right: Maggie Smith-Calderon, Qeneral Manager,

Logan Inn, and Jan Lawler, Clinton Branch Office Manager
in front of the Historic Logan Inn, New Hope. PA.

Unity Bank is proud to be a preferred
National SBA lender. Unity has been
providing SBA and Commerclal loans for
over 15 years to help our community grow.
Business owners like Rupen Patel, owner
of the Comfort Suites in Somerset, NJ

find the rates and programs they need

to finance their ventures.

Pictured left to right; Sanjay Patel, SBA Sales Manager
and Rupen Patel, Owner, Comfort Suites, Somerset, MNJ
with 2007 Choice Hotels Platinum Hospitality Award.

In 2007 Unity Bank introduced U-Deposit.
This remote capture producl allows
businesses to scan and deposit checks
from their business location. U-Deposit
eliminates trips to the bank and speeds
deposit avallabllity. Firms like

Garces & Grabler are thrilled with the
product performance. Accounting staff at
the firm use the product daily. Controller
Don Collins simply says: “We love IL.”

Pictured left to right: Walter Deutsch, Highland Park
Branch Office Manager and Don Collins, Controller,
Qarces & Qrabler, Attorneys at Law, Highland Park, MJ.
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oF FinanciAL Conpimion & RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 2pp g 1 2008

The following discussion and analysis should be
read in conjunction with the consalidated financial
statements and the notes relating thereto inctuded
herein. When necessary, reclassifications have been
made to prior period’s data for purposes of
comparability with current period presentation.

Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations® is based upon
the Company’s consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. The
preparation of these financial statements requires
the Company to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. Note 1 to the Company’s
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 34, 2007, contains a summary
of the Company’s significant accounting policies.
Management believes the Company’s policy with
respect to the methodology for the determination
of the allowance for loan losses involves a higher
degree of complexity and requires management to
make difficult and subjective judgments, which often
require assumptions or estimates about highly
uncertain matters. Changes in these judgments,
assumptions or estimates coutd materially impact
results of operations. This critical policy and its
application Is periodically reviewed with the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors.

The provision for loan losses is based upon
management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the
allowance, including an assessment of known and
inherent risks in the portfolio, giving consideration to
the size and compasition of the loan portfolio, actual
loan loss experience, level of delinquencies, detailed
analysis of individual loans for which full collectibility
may not be assured, the existence and estimated net
realizable value of any underlying collateral and
guarantees securing the loans, and current economic
and market conditions. Although management uses
the best information available, the level of the
allowance for loan losses remains an estimate, which
is subject to significant judgment and short-term
change. Various regulatory agencies, as an integral
part of their examination process, periodically review
the Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such
agencies may reguire the Company to make

Washinggo
additional provisions for loan lossesd o
Information available to them at the time of thelr
examination. Furthermore, the majority of the
Company's loans are secured by real estate.
Accordingly, the ability to collect a substantial portion
of the carrying value of the Company’s loan portfolio
is susceptible to changes in local real estate market
conditions and may be adversely affected should real
estate values decline. Future adjustments to the
allowance for loan losses may be necessary due to
economic, operating, regulatory and other
conditions beyond the Company’s controf,

Overview

Unity Bancorp, Inc. (the “Parent Company’)is a
bank holding company incorporated in New jersey
and registered under the Bank Holding Company Act
of 1956, as amended. Its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Unity Bank {the "Bank,” or when consolidated with
the Parent Company, the “Company”} is chartered by
the New Jersey Department of Banking and
Insurance. The Bank provides a full range of

* commercial and retail banking services through the

Internet and Its seventeen branch offices located in
Hunterdon, Middlesex, Somerset, Union and Warren
counties in New Jersey and Northampton County in
Pennsylvania, These services include the acceptance
of demand, savings and time deposits and the
extension of consumer, real estate, Small Business
Administration ("SBA") and other commercia! credits.

Results of Operations

Fiscal year 2007 was a challenging year for financial
institutions. During much of the year, a flat and at
times inverted Treasury vield curve reduced Bank
spreads and net interest margins. There was some
relief, beginning in September, as the Federsal
Reserve Board began lowering rates with a SO basis
point decrease in the target federal funds rate. This
was the first of three rate drops in 2007 that reduced
the Fed Funds target rate 100 basis points to 4.25
percent by year end and the Prime lending rate to
7.25 percent. Throughout 2007, deposit gathering
remained extremely competitive and highly priced
throughout the New Jersey and Eastern Pennsylvania
marketplaces. In addition, disruptions in the credit
rmarkets spurred by the subprime mortgage crisis
contributed to a challenging operating environment
for financial institutions.




Despite this challenging operating environment,
our performance in 2007 included the following
accomplishments:

s Adding full-service branches in Palmer Township,

Pennsylvania and Middlesex, New Jersey,

« Expanding our 58A lending offices as far south

as Florida and west to (llingis,

« Growing our loan portfolio 16.2 percent,

« Growing deposits by 6.1 percent,

¢ Reducing our level of nonperforming loans

$3.4 million, and

» Introducing new products such as third party

annuity and alternative investments and remote
deposit capture.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007
was $4.7 million, a 19.2 percent decrease compared
to $5.8 million for 2006,

2007 2006
Earnings per basic share $0.68 $0.85
Earnings per diluted share  $0.66 $S0.81
Return on average assets 0.66% 0.90%
Return on average equlity 10.11%  13.56%
Efficiency ratio Nnas% 67.21%

Drivers of reduced earnings include:

» A higher cost of funds and reduced net interest
margin,

« A lower level of net gains onh SBA 10an sales as a
result of the Company’s strategic decision during
the third quarter 2007 to begin retalning a
significant portion of its SBA 7(2) program loans
in its portfolio, rather than selling them to the
secondary market. In prior pericds, the Company
had sold the majority of its production to the
secondary market and consequentty realized
significant gains on these sales as noninterest
income. However, the current market spread on
these transactions has narrowed and provided
the opportunity for the Company to hotd these
loans in its portfolio and enhance interest
income, rather than sell these loans.

* An impairment charge of $607 thousand on
FHLMC preferred stack during the fourth
guarter, and

» Higher operating expenses related to the
expansion of our retail and lending networks.

2006 vs. 2005

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006
was $5.8 million, a 5.9% decrease compared to net
income of $6.2 million for 2005. Earnings per basic

and dituted share for the year ended December 31,
2006 were $0.85 and 50.81, respectively compared to
$0.92 and $0.87 for the prior year, These declines
were the result of increased net interest income
driven by a higher volume of earning assets and a
fower provision for loan losses, offset by higher
operating expenses and lower noninterest income,

Net Interest Income

The primary source of income for the Company is
net interest income, the difference between the
interest earned on earning assets such as
investments and loans, and the interest paid on
deposits and borrowings. Factors that impact the
Company's net interest income include the interest
rate envirgnment, the volume and mix of earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and the
competitive nature of the Company’s marketplace.

For the majority of 2007, the Company faced a flat,
and at times, inverted Treasury yield curve in which
deposit and borrowing costs have risen faster than
the vields on earning assets. In September 2007,
the Federal Reserve Board began to lower rates.
Rates were reduced three times by year-end for a
tota! of 100 basis points resulting in a Prime lending
rate of 7.25 percent and a Fed Funds target rate of
4.25 percent. However, despite these rate
reductions, the costs of funding asset growth
remained high and margins remained tight, due to
the lack of liquidity in the marketplace.

Puring 2007, tax equivalent interest income
increased $5.8 million or 13.4 percent to $49.1
million. OF the $5.8 million increase in interest
income on a tax equivalent basis, $4.5 million can be
attributed to the increase in average interest-earning
assets while $1.3 million may be attributed to an
increase in the vield on interest-earning assets. The
average volume of interest-earning assets increased
$62.8 million to $678.5 miliion in 2007 compared to
$615.7 million in 2006. This was due to a $62.8 million
increase in average loans and a $684 thousand
increase in average federal funds sold and interest-
bearing deposits with banks, partially offset by a $717
thousand decrease in average securities. The yield
on interest-earning assets increased 21 basis points
to 7.23 percent in 2007 due to the impact of a
higher overall interest rate environment during the
first nine months of 2007 compared to 2006.
Interest income on variable rate instruments, such as
SBA loans, commercial loans, and consumer home
equity lines of credit, increased due to these higher
market rates. In addition, the average interest rate




eamed on residential mortgage loans increased
33 basis points to 5.84 percent In 2007, compared
to 5.51 percent in 2006.

The higher interest rate environment and
competitive New Jersey and Eastern Pennsylvania
marketplaces in 2007 also increased interest expense
and the cost of funds. Total interest expense was
$24.5 million in 2007, an increase of $5.0 million or
25.9 percent compared to 2006. Of the $5.0 million
increase in interest expense in 2007, $3.5 million was
attributed to an increase in interest-bearing liabilities
while $1.5 million was due to an increase in the rates
paid on these liabilities. nterest-bearing liabilities
averaged $588.3 million in 2007, an increase of $61.5
million, or 11.7 percent, compared to 2006. The
increase in interest-bearing hiabilities was a result of
increases in the savings, time deposits, and borrowed
funds and subordinated debentures categories,
offset in part by a decline in interest-bearing demand
deposits. Average interest-bearing deposits
increased $32.3 million, as average savings deposits
increased $20.4 million and average time deposits
increased $43.8 million while average interest-bearing
demand deposits declined $32.0 million. Average
borrowed funds and subordinated debentures
increased $29.2 million to $85.0 miilion in 2007
compared to $55.8 million in 2006 due to the
addition of $30 million in FHLB borrowings. The
average cost of interest-bearing liabilities increased
47 basis points to 4.16 percent, primarify due to the
repricing of deposits and borrowings in 2 higher
interest rate environment. The cost of interest-
bearing deposits increased 47 basis points to 401
percent in 2007 and the cost of borrowed funds and
subordinated debentures increased 12 basis points to
5.03 percent. The high cost of deposits in our
marketplace combined with a shift in our deposit mix
from interest-bearing demand deposits into higher
cost savings and time deposits as illustrated below
contributed to this higher cost of funding.

2007
Interest-bearing
demand deposits
Time 17%
deposits
42%
Savings

1%

Tax-equivalent net interest income amounted to
$24.6 million in 2007, an increase of $761 thousand,
or 3.2 percent, compared to 2006. Net interest
margin decreased 25 basis points to 3.62 percent for
2007, compared to 3.87 percent in 2006. The tighter
net interest margin was primarily the result of the
higher cost of deposits to fund asset growth. The
net interest spread was 3.7 percent, a 26 basis point
decrease from 3.33 percent in 2006.

For 2006, tax-equivalent net interest income
totaled $23.8 million, an increase of $1.5 million or
6.9 percent from the $22.3 million earned in 2005.
This increase was the result of a larger volume of
interest-earning assets offset in part by a 41 basis
point decrease in net interest spread, which
averaged 3.33 percent in 2006. Net Interest margin
was 3.87 percent for 2006 compared to 4.17 percent
in 2005,

The table on the following page reftects the
components of net interest income, setting forth
for the periods presented herein: (1) average assets,
liabilities and shareholders’ equity, {2) interest income
earned on interest-earning assets and interest
expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities, (3)
average ylelds earned on interest-earmning assets
and average rates paid on interest-bearing fiabllities,
{4) net interest spread (which is the average vield
on interest-earning assets less the average rate
on interest-bearing liabilities), and (5) net interest
income/margin on average eaming assets.
Rates/Yields are computed on a fully tax-
equivalent basis, assuming a federal income
tax rate of 34 percent.

2006
interest-bearing
demand deposits
deposits
36%
Savings

39%




Consolidated Average Balance Sheets

(Dollar amounts in thousands -~ Interest amounts and interest rates/yields on a fully tax-equivalent basis.)

2007 ' 2006
Average Rate/ Average Rate/
Years ended December 31, Balance  interest Yield Balance  Interest Yield
ASSETS
Interest-earning assets:
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing
deposits with banks § 22290 $ 1,068 4.79% 5 21606 § 10482 482%
Securitles:
Available for sale 69,189 3,511 5.07 66,474 3,103 467
Held to maturity 37,724 1,986 5.26 41,156 2,069 5.03
Total securities (A) 106,913 5497 514 107,630 5172 481
Loans, net of unearned discount:
SBA 84,185 9,039 10.74 84,113 8615 10249
Commercial 341841 25738 7.53 294,773 21,914 7.43
Residential mortgage 68,443 3,995 5.8 59,933 3,305 551
Consumer 54,789 3,722 6.79 47,652 3,208 £.73
Total loans (A), (B 549,258 42,484 7.7 486,471 37.042 761
Tota! interest-eaming assets $678.461 §$ 49,059 7.23% $615,707 § 43,256 7.02%
Noninterest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 13,467 12,439
Allowance for loan losses {8,184) (7,493}
Qther assets 29304 29,302
Total noninterest-earning assets 34,587 34,248
Total Assets $MN3,048 ¢ 649,955
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
interest-bearing labilities:
interest-bearing demand deposits S B5750 $§ 1,928 2.25% $147.730 6 2648 2.25%
Savings deposits 204,14 8.064 3.95 183.815 6,948 378
Time depasits 13407 10206 a.78 169,572 7.401 419
Tota! interest-bearing deposits 503371 20198 am 421,417 16,697 354
Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures 84,962 4,276 5.03 55.756 2.735 4.9
Total interest-bearing liabilities $588333 § 24474  A416% §526,873 § 19432 3.69%
Noninterest-bearlng liabilities:
Demand deposits 75,581 77,747
Other liabilities 2,416 2,218
Total noninterest-bearing liabllities 77,997 79,965
Shareholders’ equity 46,718 43,117
Total Liabllities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 73048 $ 649,955
Net interest spread $ 24,585 3.07% § 23824 3.33%
Tax-equivalent basis adjustment (159) 79
Net interest income $ 20426 $ 23.745
Net interest margin 3.62% 3.87%

(A Yields related to securities and oans exempt from federal and state income taxes are stated on a fully tax-equivalent basis. They are
reduced by the nondeductible portion of interest expense, assuming a federal tax rate of 34 percent and applicable state tax rates.
(B) The loan averages are stated net of uneamed income, and the averages include toans on which the accrual of interest has been

discontinued.




2005 ‘ 2004 2003
Average Rate/ Average Rate/ Average Rate/
Balance Interest Yield Balance  Interest Yield Batance interest Yield
$ 17160 § 572 3.33% § 15039 § 193 1.28% $ 10846 5 138 1.27%
74,208 3,152 425 83,291 3374 405 63,102 2,403 3.81
31,139 1,477 474 17,395 867 4.98 19,633 998 5.08
105,347 4,629 439 100,686 4,241 4.1 82,735 3,401 411
74,369 6,558 8.82 62,853 4,296 6.83 65,555 4415 6.28
230,039 16,164 7.03 192,435 12,934 6.72 175,685 12,495 7.11
62,103 3,318 5.34 50,242 2712 5.40 52,014 3,126 6.1
45,707 2,648 5.79 38,979 1,860 4,77 32,323 1,676 5.19
412,218 28,688 6.96 344509 21,802 6.33 325,577 21,412 6.58
$534,725 33,889 6.34% $460,234 726,236 5.70% $413,158  $24,951 5.96%
12,661 13,304 14,216
(6,398 (5,724) (4,783)
24,399 15,603 13,764
30,662 23183 23197
$ 565,387 $ 483,417 $ 442,355
$150420 § 2,605 1.73% $188,840 § 2,656 141% $184220 § 2,703 1.47%
130,911 3,164 242 49330 620 1.26 36,976 423 114
118,174 3,820 3.23 96,686 2,507 2.59 90,814 2,733 30
399,505 9,589 2.40 334,856 5,783 173 312,000 5,859 188
46,604 2.4 432 29,169 4,225 4.20 21,532 1,169 543
$446,109  $11,603 2.60% $364025 $ 7.008 1.93% §333542 § 7.028 211%
78519 85,283 79102
2,634 1,445 1,152
81,153 86,728 80,254
38,125 32,664 28,559
$ 565,387 $ 483,417 $ 442,355
$ 22,286 3.74% $19,228 3.77% $17,923 3.85%
{52) {70) (56)
622,234 $ 19,158 $17.867
417% 4.48% 4.28%




The rate volume table below presents an analysis of the
impact on interest income and expense resulting from
changes in average volure and rates over the periods
presented. Changes that are not due to volume or rate

variances have been allocated proportionally to both, based
on their relative absolute values. Amaounts have been
computed on 2 tax-equivalent basis, assuming a federal
income tax rate of 34 percent.

2007 versus 2006 2006 versus 2005
Year ended December 31, Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
{Dolfar amounts in thousands Due to change in Due to change in
on a tax equivalent basis) Volume Rate Net volume Rate Net
Interest income:
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits $ 32 § ® $ 26 § 172 § 298 § 470
Investment securities a4 369 325 153 390 543
Net loans 4,504 948 5,452 5,705 2,649 8.354
Totaf interest income $4492 51,311 $5.803 £6,030 & 3337 $9,367
Interest Expense:
Interest-bearlng demand deposits $ (20 § - § (720 S 639 S 682 § 43
Savings deposits 794 322 1,116 1,583 2,201 3,784
Time deposits 2,0m 1,094 3,105 1,949 1,332 3,281
Total deposits $2085 $1416 $3.5M $2893 § 4215 $7.108
Other debt 1472 69 1,541 425 296 721
Total interest expense $3557 §1.485 $ 5,042 $3318 $ 4511 57829
Net interest income - fully tax-equivalent (FTE) $ 935 § (174 S 761 $212 S(1174  $1538
Increase in tax-equivatent adjustment 80 27
Net interest income $ & $1,5M1

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses totaled $1.6 million for 2007
and 2006. The provision for loan losses is comprised of the
specific and general reserve factors used to determine
reserve levels on certain types of loans. In 2006, the
provision for loan losses decreased $300 thousand from
$1.9 million in 2005 due to the change and composition of

securities, a decrease in gains on sales of SBA 7(a)
loans, lower gains on the sale of mortgage loans and
decreased service charges on deposits accounts.

The following table shows the components of
noninterest income for 2007, 2006 and 2005:

the loan portfolio, the results of the analysis of the
estimated probable lasses inherent in the ioan portfolio,
the credit worthiness of particular borrowers, and general
economic conditions.

The provision for loan losses is determined based on
management's evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance
for loan losses which is maintained at a level that is
sufficient to absorb estimated probable losses in the loan
portfolio as of the balance sheet date. (For additicnal
information, see the section titled Allowance for Loan
Losses), Management believes the current provision is
appropriate based on its assessment of the adequacy of
the allowance for loan losses.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income was $5.9 million for 2007, a
$1.7 million, or 22.2 percent decrease compared to
$7.6 million for 2006. The decrease in noninterest
income was due primarily to the net loss on

{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Service charges on Ll
deposit accounts $1383 $1,602 $1766
Service and loan fee income 1607 1637 2111
Gain on SBA loan sales, net 2399 2972 295
Gain on mortgage loan sales 52 763 382
Bank owned life insurance 198 187 185
Gains on sales of other loans - 82 -
Net security {losses! gains tal 69 69
Other income 872 726 rr4l

Total noninterest income $5940 $7.638 $8190

Service charges on deposits decreased $21¢ thousand or
13.7 percent to equal $1.4 million in 2007 compared to $1.6
million in 2006, These decreases were a result of lower
tevels of uncollected fees due to faster clearing times upon
the implementation of the federal *Check 21" law and its
increase in electronic check processing, in addition to




reduced holding times on checks from S days to 4 days.
This was consistent with 2006 when service charges on
deposit acoounts decreased $164 thousand, or 9.3 percent,
from 2005 as a result of the lower volume of uncollected
and overdraft fees collected on deposit accounts.

Service and loan fee income remained relatively flat at
$1.6 million for 2007 and 2006. Compared to 2005, service
and loan fee income decreased as a result of a decline in
SBA servicing income due to payoffs in the SBA serviced
portfolio and fower prepayment penalties on commercial
loans due to the higher interest rate enwvironment.

Gains on SBA loan sales reflect the Company's
participation In the SBA'S guaranteed loan program. Under
the SBA 7(a} program, the SBA guarantees up to 85 percent
of the principal of a qualifying foan. The Company usually
sells the guaranteed portion of the loan Into the secondary
market and retains the unguaranteed portion.

The Company expects tc sell approximately half of its
volume of newly generated SBA loans in 2008. Future
sales will be determined on a loan by loan basis on
whether it is more profitable to portfolio SBA loans and
earn the interest income or to sell the loan and record
the gain on sale and future servicing income.

Gains on the sale of SBA loans decreased 5573 thousand
or 19.3 percent to $2.4 million in 2007 compared to $3.0
million in 2006 cn a comparable sales volume. Gaing on
the sale of SBA loans remained consistent at $3.0 million
during 2006 and 2005 despite a higher volume of loan
sales in 2006. The sales of guaranteed SBA loans totaled
$41.6 million, $41.2 million, and $37.5 million for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease in gains on
these sales during both periods was the result of lower
premiums.

Gains on the sale of mortgage loans decreased
$311 thousand in 2007 to $52 thousand due to a lower
volume. Gains on the sale of mortgage loans decreased
$19 thousand in 2006 to $363 thousand due to a lower
volume of mortgage loans being sold. Sales of mortgage
loans totaled $3.0 million, $20.9 million, and $25.2 million
for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Sales decreased
significantly during 2007 as the Company chose to hold
these loans in its portfolio in response to volatility within
the market.

In December 2004, the Company purchased $5 million
of bank-gwned life insurance ("BOLI") to offset the rising
costs of employee benefits. 1n 2007, the cash surrender
value of the BOL increased $198 thousand compared to
$187 thousand the prior year.

During 2007, the Company realized $574 thousand in net
security losses compared to gains of $69 thousand in 2006
and 2005. This loss was due to a $607 thousand write-
down on three Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(*FHLMC") investment grade, perpetual callable preferred

securitles, which the Company classified as Impalred due to
the recent decline in market value and the uncertainty that
it will recover their $3.9 millicn book value within a
reasonable period.

Other income equaled 5872 thousand, $726 thousand,
and $721 thousand in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $22.1 miillion for 2007,
an increase of $1.1 million or 5.1 percent over 2006,
Branch expansion, growth of our SBA lending franchise,
and technological investments during the year
contributed to the increase in operational expense.
During the year, the Company opened branches in
Palmer Township, Pennsylvania and Middlesex, New Jersey.
The following table presents a breakdown of noninterest
expense for the years 2007, 2006 and 2005

tin thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Compensation and benefits  $ 11,446 $ 11,028 § 9,639
Occupancy. net 217 2,580 2,256
Processing & communications 2433 2220 2010
Furniture & equipment 1675 1538 1350
Loan servicing 604 542 482
Professional services 598 636 547
Advertising 457 575 697
Deposit insurance 67 67 61
Other expenses 2,056 1,859 1,634

Total noninterest expense $22113 $21,045 518,676

Compensation and benefits expense, the largest
component of noninterest expense, totaled $11.4 milion
in 2007, an increase of $418 thousand or 3.8 percent
compared to 2006. This increase was due to increased
head count as the Company added retail and lending staff,
increased merit and incentive based payments and an
increase in medical benefits premiums. Compensation and
benefits expense was $11.0 million for 2006, an increase of
$1.4 million or 14.4 percent, compared to 2005. The
increase in compensation and benefits expense for the
year was related to increased head count during the year,
menit increases and increased health care costs, At
December 34, 2007, 2006 and 2005 there were 201, 185
and 190 full-time equivalent employees, respectively.

Occupancy expense increased $197 thousand or 7.6
percent to $2.8 million in 2007. The increase was due to
leasehold improvements and utilities expenses related
to the expansion of our retail branch and SBA loan office
locations, partially offset by lower maintenance related
expenses at our existing locations. Occupancy expense
was $2.6 million for 2006, a 14.4 percent increase over
the prior year. The increase in occupancy expense was




related to the opening of a branch location in Forks
Township, Pennsylvania in 2006 and higher branch
maintenance costs, as well as annual lease increases and
increased utility and property tax expenses.

Processing and communications expenses increased
$213 thousand or 9.6 percent to $2.4 million in 2007
compared to the prior year. These increases were the
result of higher phone and data line expenses. Processing
and communications expense increased to $2.2 miflionin
2006, a $210 thousand or 10.4 percent increase compared
to 2005. The increase was due to higher data processing
costs due to increased loan and deposit transactional
volume,

Furniture and equipment expense increased $137
thousand or 8.9 percent to $1.7 million in 2007 compared to
the prior year. These increases were due primarily to higher
software and network maintenance, equipment lease and
depreciation expenses as we continue to invest in the
technology necessary to efficiently service our customers.
Furniture and equipment expense increased 13.9 percent to
1.5 million for 2006. The Increases in 2006 were due to
branch expansion and refurbishment related costs.

Loan servicing costs increased $62 thousand or 11.4
percent to $604 thousand in 2007 compared to 2006.
Loan servicing expense amounted to $542 thousand for
2006, an increase of $60 thousand, or 12.4 percent
compared to 2005. The increases during both periods
were due to higher collection costs on delinquent loans.

Professional service fees decreased $38 thousand to $598
thousand in 2007 compared to 2006 due to jower legal,
accounting and audit related fees, partially offset by
increased consultant and [oan review fees. Professional
services fees totaled $636 thousand for 2006, an $89
thousand, or 16.3 percent increase, compared to 2005. This
included increased legal, acoounting and audit related fees.

Advertising expense decreased $118 thousand to
$457 thousand in 2007. The decrease was due to the
use of less expensive delivery channels during 2007.
Advertising expense was $575 thousand for 2006, a
decrease of $122 thousand or 17.5 percent, compared
to 2005. The decrease was due to reduced advertising.

Deposit insurance expense was $67 thousand for 2007
and 2006, and $61 thousand for 2005.

Cther expenses increased $197 thousand or 10,6 percent
to $2.1 million compared to the prior year. This increase
was due primarily to increased employee recruiting and
director fees. QOther expenses amounted to $1.9 million
for 2006, an increase of $225 thousand or 43.8 percent
from the prior year. This increase was related to the
establishment of a reserve for loan commitments, higher
director fees and increased office supply expenses.

Income Tax Expense

For 2007, the Company reported income tax expense of
$2.0 million for a 29,5 percent effective tax rate compared
to $2.9 million or a 33.5 percent effective tax rate in 2006.
The decrease in the tax provision was the result of lower
pre-tax eamings and a lower effective tax rate. The lower
effective tax rate for 2007 Is related to a higher proportion
of revenue being generated at a subsidiary with a lower
effective tax, In addition to a higher balance of tax-free
securities. The Company anticipates a 33.5 percent
effective income tax rate in 2008.

For 2006, the Company reported income tax expense of
$2.9 million for a 33.5 percent effective tax rate compared
to 3.7 million or a 37.3 percent effective tax rate in 2005.
The decrease in the tax provision was the result of lower
pre-tax earnings and a lower effective tax rate. The
reduction in the effective tax rate In 2006 was related to a
higher proportion of revenue being generated at a
subsidiary with a lower effective tax rate.

Financial Condition

Total assets increased $58.1 million, or 8.4 percent, to
$752.2 million at December 31, 2007, compared to $694.1
million at December 31, 2006. This increase was due to an
$82.4 million increase in loans, offset by an $18.7 million
decrease in federal funds sold and interest-bearing
deposits and a $6.9 million decrease in tota! securities,

Average total assets for 2007 were $713.0 millicn, 2 $63.1
million increase from the prior year's $650.0 million average
balance. The increase in average assets was due primarily to
growth in the loan portfolio funded by savings, time
deposits and borrowed funds,

Investment Securities Portfolio

The Company’s securities portfolio consists of available
for sale and held to maturity investments. The investment
securities portfolio is maintained for asset-liability
management purposes, as an additional source of liquidity,
and as an additional source of earnings.

Securities available for sale are investments carried at fair
value that may be sold in response to changing market and
interest rate conditions or for other business purposes.
Activity in this portfolio Is undertaken primarily to manage
liquidity and interest rate risk, to take advantage of market
conditions that create economically attractive retumns and
as an additional source of earnings. Securities available for
sale consist primarily of U.S. Government sponsored
agencies, obligations of state and political subdivisions,
mortgage-backed securities, corporate bonds and eguity
securities.




Securities avaitable for sale were $64.9 million and $62.6
miltion at December 34, 2007 and 2006. respectively. During
2007, there were $18.6 million of purchases, $11.0 million
of maturities and pay downs, $5.3 milion in sales and $563
thousand in appreciation in the market value of the
portfolio. Securities purchases and sales consisted primarily
of agency bonds and mortgage-backed securities. At
December 31, 2007, the portfolio had a net unrealized loss
of $767 thousand compared to a net unrealized loss of $1.3
million at the end of the prior year, These unrealized gains
and losses are reflected net of tax in shareholders’ equity
as accumulated other comprehensive loss.

The average balance of securities available for sale
amounted to $69.2 million in 2007 compared to $66.5
million in 2006. The average yield earmed on the avallable
for sale portfolio increased 40 basis points, to 5.07 percent
in 2007 from 4.67 percent in 2006. The weighted average
repricing of securities available for sale, adjusted for
prepayments, amounted to 2.8 years at December 31,
2007, compared to 3.1 years in 2006.

Included in available for sale securities at December 31,
2007 were three Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
{"FHLMC") investrent grade, perpetual caliable preferred
securities which the Company classified as impaired due
to the decline in market value and the uncertainty that
they will recover their $3.9 million book value within a
reasonable period. The FHLMC securities were investment
grade at the time of purchase and remain investment
grade with ratings of AA- from S&P and Aa3 from Moody's.
At December 31, 2007, the Company had recognized an
impairment charge of $607 thousand related to these
securities. The securities continue to perform according
to their contractual terms and alt dividend payments
are current,

Securities held to maturity, which are carried at
amortized cost, are investments for which there is the
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. The portfolio
fs comprised of mortgage-backed securities, obligations of
U.S. Covernment and government sponsored agencies,
obligations of state and local subdivisions, and corporate
securities. Management determines the appropriate
security classification of available for sale or held to
maturity at the time of purchase.

Securities held to maturity were $33.7 million at
December 31, 2007, a decrease of $9.1 million or 21.2
percent, from year-end 2006. As of December 31, 2007
and 2006, the market value of held to maturity securities
was $33.6 million and $42.4 million, respectively. The
average balance of securities held to maturlty amounted to
$37.7 million in 2007 compared to $41.2 million in 2006.
The average vield earned on held to maturity securities
increased 23 basis points, from 5.03 percent in 2006 to 5.26
percent in 2007. The weighted average repricing of held to

maturity securities, adjusted for prepayments, amounted
to 3.0 years at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

Approximately 83 percent of the total investment
portfolio had a fixed rate of interest.

Securities with a carrying vatue of $54.9 million and $47.6
million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were
pledged to secure government deposits, secured other
borrowings and for other purposes required or permitted
by law.

Loan Portfolio

The loan portfolio, which represents the Company's
largest asset group, is a significant source of both interest
and fee income. The portfalio consists of commercial, SBA,
residential mortgage and consumer foans. Elements of the
loan portfolio are subject to differing levels of credit and
interest rate risk.

Total loans increased $82.4 million, or 16.2 percent to
$590.1 million at December 34, 2007, from $507.7 million at
year-end 2006. Growth in the loan portfolio was generated
by increases of $53.6 million in commercial loans, $14.4
million in SBA loans, $10.2 million in residential mortgages,

~and $4.2 million in consumer loans.

Average loans increased $62.8 million or 12.9 percent
from $486.5 mlllion In 2008, to $549.3 million in 2007. The
increase in average loans was due primarily to growth in
the commercial, residential mortgage and consumer oan
portfolios. The yield on the loan portfolio was 7.74 percent
in 2007 compared to 7.61 percent in 2006. The increase in
the vield on the loan portfolio was due to a higher interest
rate environment in 2007.

The SBA provides guarantees of up to 85 percent of the
principal amount of SBA 7{a) loans. SBA 7(a) loans available
for sale are generally sold in the secondary market with the
unguaranteed portion held in the portfolio. However
during the third quarter of 2007 the Company announced
a strategic decision to begin retaining a portion of its SBA
7(a} program loans in its portfolio, rather than selling them
into the secondary market. Although the decision
impacted earnings in the short-term, management believes
it will benefit the Company over the [ong-term. SBA 7{a)
loans held to maturity amounted to $68.9 million at
December 31, 2007, an increase of $2.1 million from
December 31, 2006. SBA 7(3) loans held for sale, carried at
the lower of cost or market, amounted to $24.6 million at
December 31, 2007, an increase of $12.4 million from
December 31, 2006. SBA 7(a) loans are often originated
outside of the Company's marketplace.

Commercial loans are generally made in the Company's
marketplace for the purpose of providing working capital,
financing the purchase of equipment, inventory or
commerdcial real estate and for other business purposes.
These loans amounted to $365.8 million at December 31,
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2007, an increase of $53.6 million from year-end 2006. The
commerdial portfolio is expected to continue to increase in
2008. Included in commercial loans at December 31, 2007
are $72.1 miflion of SBA 504 loans. The SBA 504 program
consists of real estate backed commercial mortgages
where generally the Company has the first mortgage and
the SBA has the second mortgage on the property, The
Company generally has a 50 percent [oan to value ratio on
SBA 504 program loans.

Residential mortgage loans consist of 1oans secured by
1-4 family residential properties. These loans amounted to
$73.7 million at December 31, 2007, an increase of §10.2
million from December 31, 2006. During 2007, the
Company held the majority of originated mortgages in its
portfolio compared to prior yvears when [t sold these loans
into the secondary market.

Consumer loans consist of home equity 1oans and loans
for the purpose of financing the purchase of consumer
goods, home improvements, and other personal needs,
and are generally secured by the personal property being
purchased. These loans amounted to $57.1 mitlion at
December 31, 2007, an increase of $4.2 million or 7.9
percent from $52.9 million at December 31, 2006, The
growth In consumer loans is related to the growth in home
equity foans and lines.

The following table sets forth the classification of loans
by major category, including unearmed, deferred costs and
excluding the allowance for loan losses for the past five
years at December 34:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

% of % of % of % of % of
{in thousands) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount  Total Amount  Total
SBA held for sale $24640 42% $ 12273  24% 51400  31% § 7574 20% S 14014 41%
SBA held to maturity 68,875 11.7% 66,802 132% 64660 14.4% 55,576 14.9% 49,983 14.7%
Commercial 365786 619% 312195 615% 260,581 58.1% 207.771 556% 188197 55.4%
Residential mortgage 73,697 12.5% 63493 125% 62039 138% 60,240 16.1% 51176 15.1%
Consumer 57133 9.7% 52,927 104% 47286 10.6% 42419  11.4% 36,385 10.7%
Tota! Loans $590,132 100.0% $507.690 100.0% $448,567 100.0% $373.580 100.0% $339,755 100.0%

The Company has a concentration to a group of Asset Quality

horrowers in the Hotel/Mote! industry of approximately 13
percent of the total loan portfolio. There are no other
concentrations of loans to any borrowers or group of
borrowers exceeding 40 percent of the total loan portfolio.
There are no foreign loans in the portfolio, As a preferred
SBA lender, a portion of the SBA portfolio Is outside of the
Company's lending area,

The following table shows the maturity distribution or re-
pricing of the loan portfolio and the allocation of figating
and fixed interest rates at December 31, 2007.

Within 1-5  After
{In thousands) 1 Year Years 5 Years Total
SBA $ 67518 $ 25627 § 370 $ 93515
Commercial 111,273 295,337 39,176 365,786
Residential mortgage 13,965 34,756 27976 73697
Consumer 22,336 9,953 24845 57134
Total $215,092 $282,673 $92,367 $590.132

Arncunt of loans with maturities
or repricing dates greater than cne vear:

Fixed interest rates $159.624
Floating or adjustable interest rates 215,416
Total $375,040

inherent in the lending function Is the possibility that a
customer may not perform in accordance with the
contractual terms of the loan. A borrower's inability to pay
its obligations according to the contractual terms can
create the risk of past due loans and ultimately credit
losses, especially on collateral deficlent loans.

Nonperforming loans generally consist of loans that are
not accruing interest (nonaccrual loans) as a result of
principat or interest being in default for a period of 90 days
or more or when the ability to collect principal and interest
according to the contractual terms is in doubt. When a loan
is dassified as nonaccrual, interest accruals discontinue and
all past due interest previcusly recognized as income is
reversed and charged against current period income.
Unless the ability to collect principal and interest is
reasonably assured, any payments recelved from the
horrower are applied to outstanding principal until such
time as management determines that the financial
condition of the borrower and other factors merit
recognition of a portion of such payments as interest
income.

Credit risk is minimized by {oan diversification and
adhering to credit administration policies and procedures.
Due difigence on loans begins upon the application for a




loan by a prospective borrower. Docurmentation, including
a borrower’s credit history, materials establishing the valug
of potential collateral, the source of funds for repayment
of the [oan and other factors are analyzed before a loan is
submitted for approval. The lpan portfolio is then subject

to ongoing internal reviews for credit quallty. In addition, an
outside firm is used to conduct independent credit reviews.

The following table sets forth information conceming
nonperforming loans and nonperforming assets at
December 31 for the past five years:

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Nonperforming by category
Commercial $1,630 $3.472 $1,250 51,534 $ 1,568
SBAI1) 2,110 5212 13" 2013 3175
Residential mortgage 1192 322 1,910 288 458
consumer 529 203 210 256 194
Total nonperforming loans $5,461 $8.909 44,361 4,091 § 5,395
QREQ 106 211 178 345 327
Total nonperforming assets 45,567 9,120 $4,539 $4.436 4 5,722
Past due 90 days or more

and still accruing interest
Commercial $ M $ - § - 5 - $ 1,842
SBA 114 - - - 34
Residential mortgage - 78 - - -
Consumer - - - - -~
Total $ 155 $ 78 $ - $ - $ 1876
Nonperforming loans to total loans 0.93% 1.75% 0.97% 110% 1.59%
Nonperforming assets to total loans

and ORED 0.94% 1.80% 1.01% 1.19% 1.68%
Allowance for loan losses as a

percentage of nonperforming loans 153.49% 85.58% 158.04% 143.14% 99.20%
{1) SBA Loans Guaranteed $ Ma $2,953 $ 758 $1,240 $ 1,904

Nonperforming loans were $5.5 million at December 34,
2007, a $3.4 million decrease from $8.9 million at year-end
2006. During 2007, there was approximately $8.0 mitlion
in loans transferred into nonaccrual status, offset by
$11.4 million in payoffs, charge-offs or principal pay
downs. included in nonperforming ioans at December 34,
2007 are approximately $714 thousand of loans that are
guaranteed by the SBA,

There were $155 thousand of loans past due 90 days or
meore and still accruing at December 34, 2007, compared
to $78 thousand at December 31, 2006 and no such ioans
at December 31, 2005.

QOther real estate owned ("OREQ”) properties totaled
$106 thousand at year-end 2007, a decrease of $105
thousand from $211 thousand at December 31, 2006.

Potential problem loans are those where information
about possible credit problems of borrowers causes
management to have doubts as t0 the ability of such
borrowers to comply with loan repayment terms. These
loans are not included In nonperforming loans as they
continue to perform. Potential problem loans, which
consist primarily of commercial and SBA products, were

$2.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 54.3 million at
December 31, 2006.

Allowance for Loan Losses and Unfunded Commitments
We maintain an allowance for loan losses at a level that
the Company believes is sufficient to absorb probable and
estimated credit tosses in the toan portfolio as of the
balance sheet date. While we make allocations to specific
loans, the total reserve is available For all loan losses.
Management utilizes a standardized methodology to
assess the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. This
process includes the allocation of specific and general
reserves. Specific reserves are made to significant individual
impaired loans and are determined in accordance with SFAS
114, Accounting by Creditors for impairment of a Loan.
We have defined impalired icans to include all nonaccrual
ioans. All other "non-impaired” loans are allocated a
general reserve. This general reserve is set based upon
the historical net charge-off rate adjusted for certain
environmental factors such as: delinquency and
impairment trends, charge-off and recovery trends,
volume and loan term trends, risk and underwriting
policy trends, staffing ang experience changes, national
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and Iocal economic trends, industry conditions and credit
concentration changes.

Additions to the allowance for loan losses are made by
provisions charged to expense whereas the allowance is
reduced by net charge-offs (i.e., loans judged to be not

The allowance for loan losses amounted to $8.4 million at
December 31, 2007, compared to $7.6 million at year-end
2006. The increase in the allowance for loan losses was due
to the provision for loan losses of $4.6 million exceeding
$79 thousand of net charge-offs. In addition, the increase

collectable are charged against the reserve, less any
recoveries on such loans). Although management
attempts to maintain the allowance at a level deemed
adequate to provide for probable losses, future additions
to the allowance may be necessary based upon certain
factors including obtaining updated financial information
about the borrower's financial condition and changes in
market conditions and underlying collateral values. In
addition, various regulatory agencies periodically review the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. These agencies

in the allowance for foan losses was attributable to the
specific and general reserve factors used to determine
reserve levels on certain types of loans, the analysis of the
estimated probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio
based upon the review of particular loans, the credit
worthiness of particular bormowers, and general economic
conditions, offset by decreased levels of nonperforming

loans.

The following Is a summary of the allowance for lcan

have in the past and may in the Future require the losses for the past five years:

Company to make additional adjustments based on their

judgments about information avallable to them at the time

of their examination,

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of year $7628 $ 6,892 $ 5,856 $ 5,352 $ 4,094
Charge-offs:

Commercial 155 298 300 61 294
SBA 770 573 M 320 486
Residential mortgage - - 49 18 -
Consumer 50 62 523 29 93
Total charge-offs 975 933 1173 968 873
Recoveries:

Commercial 18 75 84 181 419
SBA 147 20 204 99 78
Residential mortgage - - - - -
Consumer 19 20 Al 17 34
Total recoveries 184 115 359 297 531
Total net charge-offs s ™ $ 818 S 814 S &M § 342
Provision charged to expense $ 1,550 $1.550 $1.850 $1,475 $ 1,600
Balance at end-of -year $ 8,383 $7.624 $ 6,892 $ 5,856 45,352
Net charge-offs to average loans 0.14% 017% 0.20% 0.19% 0.11%
Allowance to total loans 1.42% 1.50% 1.54% 1.57% 1.58%

In addition to the allowance for loan losses, we malntain
an allowance for unfunded loan commitments. This
commitment reserve is reported on our balance sheet
as an other liability. We determine this amount using

estimates of future foan funding and losses related to

those credit exposures. The commitment reserve totaled
$102 thousand and $127 thousand at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.




The following table sets forth, for each of the major
{ending categories, the amount of the allowance for loan
losses allocated to each category and the percentage of
total loans represented by such category, as of December
21st of each year. The allocated allowance is the total of

2007 2006

identified specific and general reserves by [0an category,
The allocation is made for analytical purposes and is not
necessarily indicative of the categories in which future
losses may occur, The total allowance is available to absorb
losses from any segment of the portfolio.

2005 2004 2003

% of % of
Amount Loans  Amount Loans

{in thousands)

% of % of % of
Amount loans Amount Loans  Amount Loans

Balance applicable to:

SBA $2188 15.9% $2.066 15.6% 51712 175% $1.724 16.9% $1,206 188%
Commerdial 5115 61.9% 4865 b61.5% 4417 581% 3,456 55.6% 3526 55.4%
Residential mortgage 570 12.5% 305 12.5% 444 13.8% 375 161% 270 151%
Consumer 510 9.7% 288 10.4% 319 106% 321 11.4% 260 10.7%
Totat $ 8,383 100.0% $7.624 1000%  $6.892 100.0% $5.85 100.0% $ 5352 100.0%
Deposits growth was achieved through the emphasis on customer

Deposits, which include noninterest-bearing demand
deposits and interest-bearing demand, savings and time
deposits, are the primary source of the Company’s funds.
The Company offers a vartety of nroducts designed to
attract and retain customers, with primary focus on
building and expanding relationships. For 2007, the
Company realized continued growth in deposits. This

service, competitive rate structures and selective marketing
through the Company’s branch network. The Company
continues to focus on establishing a comprehensive
relationship with business borrowers, seeking deposits as
welt as lending relationships.

The following are period-end deposit balances for each
of the last three years.

At December 31, 2007 2006 2005

{In thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount %
interest-bearing demand deposits $ 78019  130% $105,382 18.6% $139076 26.7%
savings deposits 196,350 32.7% 205,919 36.4% 141935 27.2%
Time deposits 256,259  426% 175,392 30.9% 161,302 30.9%
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 70600 11.7% 74,772 14.1% 79,547  15.2%
Total deposits §601,268 100.0% $566.465  100.0% £521,860 100.0%

Total deposits increased $34.8 million to $601.3 million at
December 31, 2007 from $566.5 million at December 31,
2006. The increase in deposits was the result of an $80.9
mikfion increase in time deposits, partially offset by declines
In interest-bearing demand deposits, demand deposits and
savings deposits.

The mix of deposits shifted during 2007 as the
concentration of demand deposits and interest-bearing
demand deposits fell and the concentration of higher-cost
savings and time deposits increased.

The average cost of interest-bearing deposits in 2007 was
4.1 percent compared to 3.54 percent for 2006. The
increase in the cost of deposits can be attributed to the
high cost of deposits in the New Jersey and Eastern
Pennsyivania marketplaces, the lack of liquidity in these
marketptaces, and the shift in the mix of deposits. The
Company expects the trend ¢f growth in the deposit base
t0 continue in 2008.




The following are average deposits for each of the last three years.

2007 2006 2005
{in thousands) Amount % Amount %  Amount %
Interest-bearing demand deposits $ 85750 148% SM7,730 214% 5150420 31.5%
Savings deposits - 20414 353% 183815  33.5% 130,911 27.4%

Time deposits 213407  36.8% 169572 309% 118174  247%

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits

75,581  134% 77747 142% 78519 16.4%

Total deposits $578,952 100.0%  $548,864 100.0% 9478024 100.0%

Borrowed Funds and Subordinated Debentures

Borrowed funds consist primarily of fixed rate advances
from the Federal Home Loan Bank (*FHLB"} of New York
and repurchase agreements. These borrowings are used as
a source of liquidity or to fund asset growth not supported
by deposit generation. Residential mortgages and
investment securities collateratize the borrowings from the
FHLB, while investment securities are pledged against the
repurchase agreements.

As of December 31, 2007, borrowed funds totaled $85.0
million, an increase of $30.0 million from the prior year-
end, as available pricing presented a favorable alternative
to the high cost of deposits in the New Jersey and Eastem
Pennsylvania marketplaces. The change since December 31,
2006 was due to the addition of a $10.0 million FHLB
advance in April 2007, a $10.0 million FHLB repo-advance In
August 2007, and a $10.0 million FHLB repo-advance in
December 2007.

Due to the cument interest rate environment, the
company chose to redeem $9.0 million in subordinated
debentures issued by Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust | on
September 26, 2007, which were issued on September 26,
2002 at a fioating rate of 3-month Libor plus 340 basis points.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company was a
party to the following transactions:

(In thousands) 2007 2006
FHLB Barrowings:
Overnight line of credtt $ 5000 $ 5000
Fixed rate advances 40,000 30,000
Repurchase agreements 30,000 10,000
QOther repurchase agreements 10,000 10,000
Subordinated debentures 15,465 24,744

At December 31, 2007, the Company had $14.3 million of
additional availability at the FHLB. Pledging additional
collateral in the form of 1-4 family residential mortgages or
investment securities can increase the line with the FHLB.
The maximum borrowing line available if additional
collateral was pledged as of December 31, 2007 amounted
to approximately $62.0 million.

For additional information see Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Market Risk

Based on the Company’s business, the two largest risks
facing the Company are market risk and credit risk. Market
risk, for the Company, is primarily limited to interest rate
risk, which is the impact that changes In interest rates
would have on future eamings. The Company's
Asset/Liability Committee ("ALCO"} manages this risk. The
principal objectives of ALCO are to establish prudent risk
management guidelines, evaluate and controi the leve! of
interest rate risk in batance sheet accounts, determine the
level of appropriate risk given the business focus, operating
environment, capital, and liquidity requirements, and
actively manage risk within Board approved guidelines.
ALCO reviews the maturities and repricing of loans,
investrents, deposits and borrowings, cash flow needs,
current market conditions, and interest rate levels.

The Company uses various techniques to evaluate risk
levels on both a short and long-term basis. One of the
monitoring tools is the “gap” ratio. A gap ratio, asa
percentage of assets, is calculated to determine the
maturity and repricing mismatch between interest rate-
sensitive assets and interest rate-sensitive liabilities. A gap
is considered positive when the amount of interest rate-
sensitive assets repricing exceeds the amount of interest
rate-sensitive liabilities repricing in a designated time
period. A positive gap should result in higher net interest
income with rising interest rates, as the amount of the
assets repricing exceed the amount of liabilities repricing.
Conversely, a gap is considered negative when the amount
of interest rate-sensitive liabilities exceeds interest rate-
sensitive assets, and lower rates should result in higher net
interest income.

Repricing of mortgage-related investrnents are shown by
contractual amortization and estimated prepayments based
on the most recent 3-menth constant prepayment rate.
Callable agency securities are shown based upon their
option-adjusted spread modified duration date (*0AS™),
rather than the next call date or maturity date. The 0AS
date considers the coupon on the security, the time to the
next call date, the maturity date, market volatility and
current rate levels, Fixed rate loans are allocated based on
expected amortization,




The following table sets forth the gap ratio at December
31, 2007. Assumptions regarding the repricing
characteristics of certain assets and liabilities are critical in
determining the projected level of rate sensitivity. Certain
savings and interest checking accounts are less sensitive to

market interest rate changes than other interest-bearing
sources of funds. Core deposits such as demand interest,
savings and money market deposits are allocated based on
their expected repricing in relation to changes in market
interest rates.

More than More than Morethan  More than
Sikxmonths onevear twovears fiveyears  tenvyears
Under six through  through  through  through and not
{In thousands) months oneyear twovyears fiveyears tenyears  repricing Total
Assets
Cash & due from banks S - S - 4 - 5 - g - §$14336 $ 14336
Federal funds sold 21,976 - - - - - 21.976
Investment securities 16,568 12,248 14,952 25,851 20,237 8734 98,591
Loans 180,505 34,587 70053 212,620 62,468 29899 590,132
Qther assets - - - - - 27,161 27161
Total Assets $219,049 $ 46836 5 85005 5238471 $82,706  § 80130  $752196
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Noninterest-bearing
demand deposits $ - 3 - 5 -9 - § - $70600 $ 70800
Savings and interest-bearing
demand deposits 177.944 878 6,769 53,304 19,514 - 274,409
Time deposits 138829 60,466 39197 17.416 351 - 256,259
Borrowed funds and
subordinated debentures 20,465 - 10,000 20,000 50,000 - 100,465
Other liabilities - - - - - 3,203 3,203
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - 47,260 47,260
Liabilities and Shareholders” Equity  $ 337,238 S 61,344 $ 55966 §106,720 969,865 $121,063 752,196
Interest Rate Swap $ 10,000 - - $(10.000 - - -
Gap 5(128,189) 5 (14508) $§ 29039 5141751 512,840  $140,933) -
Cumulative Gap §128,189) 4142697 SM13658) § 28093 540933 - -
Cumulative Gap to Total Assets 17.0% {19.0% {15. 1% 3.7% 5.4% - -

At December 31, 2007, there was a six-month liabity-
sensitive gap of $118.2 million and a one-year liability-
sensitive gap of $132.7 million, as compared to liability-
sensitivity gaps of $124.4 million and $133.7 million at
December 31, 2006. The six-month and one-year
cumulative gap to total assets ratios were within the board-
approved guidelines of +/- 20 percent.

Other models are also used in conjunction with the static
gap table, which is not able to capture the sk of changing
spread relationships over time, the effects of projected
growth in the balance sheet or dynamic decisions such as
the modification of investrnent maturities as a rate
environment unfolds. For these reasons, a simulation
maodel is used, where numerous interest rate scenarios and
balance sheets are combined to produce a range of
potential income results. Net interest income is managed
within guidefine ranges for interest rates rising or falling by
200 basis points. Results outside of guidelines require action

by ALCO to correct the imbalance. Simulations are typically
created over a 12-24 month time horizon. At December 31,
2007, these simulations show that with a 200 basis point
immediate increase in interest rates, net interest income
would decrease by approximately $1.1 million or 4.2 percent.
An immediate dedine of 200 basis points in interest rates
would increase net interest income by approximately

$1.2 milllon or 4.4 percent. These variances in net interest
income are within the board-approved guidelines of

+/- 7 percent.

Finally, to measure the impact of longer-term asset and
liability mismatches beyond two years, the Company utilizes
Modified Duration of Equity and Economic Value of Portfolio
Equity (*EVPE") models. The modified duration of equity
measures the potential price risk of equity to changes in
interest rates. A longer maodified duration of equity
Indicates a greater degree of risk to rising interest rates.
Because of balance sheet optionality, an EVPE analysis is also




used to dynamically model the present value of asset and
liability cash flows, with rate shocks of 200 basis points. The
economic value of equity is likely to be different as interest
rates change. Like the simulation mode, results falling
outside prescribed ranges require action by ALCO. The
Company’s variance in the economic value of equity with
rate shocks of 200 basis points is a deding of 26.84 percent
in a rising rate envircnment and an increase of 4.4% percent
in a falling rate ervironment, The variance in the EVPE at
Decernber 31, 2007 is within board-approved guidelines of
+/- 35 percent,

Financial Derivatives

In order to manage interest rate risk, the Company may
enter into financial derivative contracts such as interest
rate swaps. At December 31, 2007, the Company was a
party to one interest rate swap transaction with the
following characteristics:

* Pay fixed, receive variable ~ Libor,

* Notional/contract amount = $10 million,

« Fair value = 523) thousand,

¢ Maturity date 9/23/2011,

* Weighted average interest rate paid = 4.10%, and

¢ Weighted average interest rate received = 4.88%.

The Company was not a party to any financial derivative
transactions at December 31, 2006.

For additional information see Note 12 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Operating, Investing and Financing

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows present the
changes in cash from operating, investing and financing
activities. At December 31, 2007, the balance of ¢ash and
cash equivalents was $36.3 million, a decrease of $19.1
million from December 31, 2006.

Net cash used in operating activities totaled $3.8 million
at December 31, 2007, as compared to providing $7.6
million at December 31, 2006. The primary source of funds
was net income from operations adjusted for: provision for
Ioan losses, depreciation expeanses, proceeds from SBA
loans held for sale and mortgage loans held for sale, offset
by criginations of S8A and mortgage loans held for sale,

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $66.9
million in 2007, increasing from a year ago. The cash used
in investing activities was primarily a result of funding of
the loan and securities portfolios, offset by sales, maturities
and pay-downs in the investment portfolio.

Net cash provided by financing activities amounted to
551.6 million for 2007, compared to $74.1 milllon in 2006.
The increase in cash provided by financing activities was

due to growth in the Company’'s deposit base and an
increase In the Company's borrowings.

Liquidity

The Company’s liquidity Is 8 measure of its ability to fund
Ioans, withdrawals or maturities of deposits and other cash
outflows in a cost-effective manner.

Parent Company

Generally, the Parent Cempany's cash is used for the
payment of operating expenses and cash dividends. The
principal sources of funds for the Parent Company are
dividends paid by the Bank. The Parent Company only
pays expenses that are specifically for the benefit of the
Parent Company. Other than its investment in the Bank,
Unity Statutory Trust Il and Unity Statutory Trust I, the
Parent Company does not actively engage in other
transactions or business. The majority of expenses paid
by the Parent Company are related to Unity Statutory
Trust 1l and Unity Statutory Trust fil.

At December 31, 2007, the Parent Company had
5433 thousand in cash and $216 thousand in marketable
securitles, valued at fair market value compared to $6.9
million in cash and $270 thousand in marketable securities
at December 31, 2006. The decrease in cash at the Parent
Company was due primarily to the redemption of $9.0
million in subordinated debentures issued through its
subsidiary Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust |, the repurchase of
approximately 380 thousand shares of Unity Bancorp
stock at a total cost of $3.2 million, and the quarterly
payment of cash dividends.

Consolidated Bank

The principal sources of funds for the Bank are deposits,
scheduled amortization and prepayments of 1oan and
investment principal, sales and maturities of investment
securities and funds provided by operations. While
scheduled loan payments and maturing Investments are
relatively predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and
loan prepayments are greatly influenced by generat
interest rates, economic conditions and competition.

Total FHLB borrowings amounted to $75.0 million and
third party repurchase agreements totaled $10.0 million,
as of December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2007, $11.3
million was available for additional borrowings from the
FHLB. Pledging additiona! collaterat in the form of 1-4
family residential mortgages or investment securities ¢an
increase the line with the FHLB. Additional sources of
liquidity are the securities available for sale portfolio and
SBA loans held for sale portfolio, which amounted to
$64.9 million and $24.6 million respectively, at
December 31, 2007.




As of December 31, 2007, deposits included $30.5 million
of Government deposits, as compared to $40. million at
year-end 2006. These deposits are generally short in
duration and are very sensitive to price competition. The
Company believes that the current level of these types of
deposits is appropriate. Included in the portfolio were
$23.3 million of deposits from three municipalities. The
withdrawa! of these deposits, in whole or in part, would
not create a liquidity shortfall for the Company.

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had approximately
$132.0 million of loan commitments, which will either
expire or be funded, generally within one year. The
Company believes it has the necessary liquidity to honor all
commitments. Many of these commitments will expire and
never be funded. In addition, approximately 25 percent of
these commitments are for SBA Loans, which may be sold
Into the secondary market.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations
The following table shows the amounts and expected maturities of off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31,
2007. Further discussion of these commitments is included in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

One to Three to

One Year Three Five Qver Five
{in thousands) or Less Years Years Years Total
Standby letters of credit $ 994 § 2,951 4 - ) - % 3945

The following table shows the contractual obligations of the Company by expected payment period, as of Oecember 31,
2007. Further discussion of these commitments is included In Notes 10-11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

One to Three to

One Year Three Five Over Five
{In thousands) or Less Years Years Years Total
Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures $ 5.000 $ 20,000 5 - $75.465  $100.465
Operating lease obligations 1.165 577 217 160 2119
Purchase obligations - Fiserv 1,397 2012 1,051 - 4,460
Total $ 7,562 $ 22,589 $ 1,268 $75625  $107.044

Long-term debt obligations Include fixed term
borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank, repurchase
agreements and subordinated debentures. The borrowings
have defined terms and under certzin circumstances are
caliable at the option of the lender.

Operating leases represent obligations entered into by
the Company for the use of land, premise and equipment.

The leases generally have escalation terms based upon
certaln defined indexes.

Purchase cbllgations represant legally binding and
enforceable agreements to purchase goods and services
from third parties and consist primarily of contractual
obligations under data processing service agreements.




Capital

A significant measure of the strength of a financial
institution is its capital base. Federal regulators have
classified and defined capital into the following
companents: (1} tier 1 capital, which includes tangible
shareholders' equity for common stock, qualifying
preferred stock and other qualifying hybrid instruments,
and {2) tier 2 capital, which includes a portion of the
allowance for loan losses, certain qualifying long-term debt
and preferred stock which does not qualify for tier 4

capital. Minimum capital levels are regulated by risk-based
capital adequacy guidelines, which require a bank to
maintain certain capital as a percent of assets and cenzin
off-balance sheet items adjusted for predefined credit risk
factors Irisk-adjusted assets). A bank is required to
maintain, at a minimum, tier 1 capital as a percentage of
risk-adjusted assets of 4.0 percent and combined tier 1
and tier 2 capital 3s a percentage of risk-adjusted assets
of 8.0 percent.

The following table summarizes the Company's and the Bank's risk-based and leveraged capital ratios at December 31,
2007 and 2006, as well as the required minimum regulatory capital ratios..

Adequately Well
Capitalized Capitalized
Company Dec, 2007 Dec. 2000 Requirements Requirements
Leverage ratio 8.25% 9.08% 4.00% N/A
Tier 4 risk-based capital ratto 9.81% 10.80% 4.00% N/A
Total risk-based capital ratio 11.06% 13.60% 8.00% N/A
Adequately well
Capitalized Capitalized
Bank Dec. 2007 Dec. 2006 Requirements Requirements
Leverage ratic 7.06% 7.20% 4.00% 5.00%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 8.39% 8.55% 4.00% 6.00%
Total risk-based capital ratio 11.00% 12.38% 8.00% - 10.00%

At December 31, 2007, shareholders’ equity was $47.3
million, a $1.0 million increase from year-end 2006. The
increase in shareholders’ equity was a result of $4.7 milfion
in net income and $1.3 million from the exercise of stock
options, partially offset by $1.4 million of common stock
cash dividends and $3.9 million in Treasury stock purchased.
The ratio of total equity to assets at December 31, 2007
and 2006 was 6.26 percent and 6.66 percent, respectively.

Ouring 2006, the Company enhanced its regulatory
capital by issuing $10.0 million of floating rate capital
securities through its subsidiary Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust i
and the issuance of $5 million in floating rate capital
securities through its subsidiary Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust 1.
These securities qualify as Tier | Capital.

On October 21, 2002, the Company authorized the
repurchase of up to 10 percent of its outstanding common
stock, The amount and timing of purchases will be
dependent on a number of factors, including the price and
availability of the Company’s shares, general market
conditions and competing alternate uses of funds. During
2007, the Company repurchased 380 thousand shares at an
average price of $10.35. As of December 31, 2007 the

Company had repurchased a total of 528 thousand shares of
which 125 thousand shares have been retired, leaving 127
thousand shares remaining to be repurchased under the
plan,

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains certain forward-looking statements,
either expressed or implied, which are provided to assist the
reader in understanding anticipated future financial
performance. These statements Involve certain risks,
uncertainties, estimates and assumptions by managernent.
Factors that may cause actual results to differ from those
results expressed or implied, include, but are not imited to,
the overall economy and the interest rate erwironment; the
ability of the customers to repay their obligations; the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses; competition;
significant changes in tax, accounting or regulatory practices
and requirements, and technological changes. Although
management has taken certain steps to mitigate the
negative effect of the afarementioned items, significant
unfavorable changes could severely impact the assumptions
used and have an adverse effect on future profitability.




MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adeguate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Under the supervision and with the participation of the President and Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our control over financial
reporting based on the framework in /internal Control-integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway Commission (*COS0O7. Based on our evaluation under the
framework, management has concluded that our internal contro! over financial reporting was effective as
of December 31, 2007.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 has not been attested to by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, the independent registered public
accounting firm that audited the Company's consolidated financlal statements for the year ended
December 31, 2007 as stated in their report which Is included herein.

" & g

James A. Hughes
President and Chief Executive Officer

Alan J. Bedner
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Unity Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Unity Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries

("the Company"} as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes
in sharehotders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
were audited by other auditors whose reports, dated March 15, 2007 and February 17, 2006, respectively,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board {United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Unity Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 34, 2007, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We were not engaged to examine management’s assertion about the effectiveness of Unity Bancorp, Inc.
and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 included in the
accompanying ‘Management’s Report on internal Control Over Financial Reporting” and, accordingly, we
do not express an opinion thereon.

/?M//xf&-c/ ce

McCladrey & Pullen, LLP
Blue Bell, Pennsylvania
March 20, 2008




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Unity Bancorp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheet of Unity Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of Income, changes in
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31,
2006. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also inctudes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financtal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Unity Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.”

KPMe P

KPMG LLP
Short Hills, New Jersey
March 15, 2007




CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEETS

{In thousands)

December 31,
' 2007 2006
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 14335 § 14727
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits N,976 40,709
Securities:
Avallable for sale 64,855 62,642
Held to maturity (fair value of $33,639 and 542,449 in 2007 and 2006, respectively) 33,736 42 815
Total securities 98,591 105,457
Loans;
SBA held for sale 24,640 12,273
SBA held to maturity 68,875 66,802
Commercial 365,786 312,195
Residential mortgage 73,697 63,493
Consurner 57134 52,927
Total loans 520,132 507,690
Less: Allowance for joan losses 8,383 7.624
Net loans 581,749 500,066
Premises and equipment, net 12,102 11.610
Bank owned life insurance 5.570 5.372
Accrued Interest receivable 3,993 3.926
Loan servicing asset 2,056 2,294
Goodwill ang other intangibles 1,588 1,603
Other assets 10,234 8,342
Total Assets $ 752196 $ 694,106
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 70,600 $ 79772
Interest-bearing demand deposits 78,019 105,382
Savings deposits 196,390 205,919
Time deposits, under $100,000 168,244 114,070
Time deposits, $100,000 and over 88,015 64,322
Total deposits 601,268 566,465
Borrowed funds 85,000 55,000
Subordinated debentures 15.465 24,744
Accrued interest payable 635 475
Accrued expenses and other [iabilities 2,568 1,194

Total Liabilities 704,936 647,878
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11) - -
Sharehaolders’ equity:

Common stock, no par value, 12,500 shares authorized, 7.131 shares issued and

6,727 outstanding in 2007: 6,973 shares issued and 6,949 cutstanding in 2006 49,447 44,343
Retzined earnings 2472 2,951
Treasury stock at cost (404 shares In 2007 and 24 shares in 2006 {4,169) (242)
Accumulated other comprehensive 10ss (430) (824)
Total Shareholders' Equity a7.260 46,228
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 752,196 $ 694,106

The accompanylng notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements,




CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

{In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31,

2007 | 2006 2005
Interest income
Federal funds sold and interest on deposits $ 1,068 S 1,042 § 572
Securities:
Available for sale 3425 3.051 3,100
Held to maturity 1913 2,042 1,477
Total securities 5,338 5,093 4,577
Loans:
SBA loans 9,039 8.615 6,558
Commercial loans 25,738 21.914 16,164
Residential mortgage loans 3,995 3.305 3,318
Consumer loans 3,722 3,208 2.648
Total loan Interest income 42454 37.042 28,688
Total interest income 48,300 43177 33,837
Interest expense
Interest-bearing demand deposits 1,928 2,648 2.605
Savings deposits 8,054 6.948 3,164
Time deposits 10,206 7.401 3.820
Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures 4276 2.735 2,014
Total interest expense 24474 19,432 11,603
Net interest income 24426 23,745 22.234
Provision for 1oan losses 1,550 1,550 1.850
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 22876 22195 20,384
Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,383 1,602 1,766
Service and loan fee income 1,607 1,637 2.111
Gain on sale of SBA loans held for sale, net 2,399 2,972 2,956
Cain on sale of mortgage loans 52 363 382
Gain on sale of other loans - 82 -
Bank owned (ife insurance 198 187 185
Net security (losses) gains (571) 69 69
Qther income 8n 726 721
Total noninterest income 5,940 7.638 8,190
Noninterest expense
Compensation and benefits 11,446 11,028 9,639
Qccupancy 2 2,580 2,256
Processing and communications 2433 2,220 2,010
Furniture and equipment 1,675 1,538 4,350
Professional services 598 636 547
Loan servicing 604 542 482
Advertising 457 575 697
Depaosit insurance 67 67 671
Other expenses 2,056 1,859 1,634
Total noninterest expense 22113 21,045 18,676
Income before provision for income taxes 6,703 8,788 9,898
Provision far income taxes 1,978 2,943 3,688
Net income $ 4725 $ 5845 5 6210
Net income per share - Basi¢ $ 068 $ 085 $ 092
Diluted $ 066 $ 081 S 087
Weighted average common shares outstanding - Basic 6,900 6,912 6,748
Diluted 7,169 1.257 7,099

The accompanying nates to the consolidated financial statements are an Integral part of these statements.

|




CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

{In thousands)

Accumulated
Other Total
Common Common Retained  Treasury Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Stock  Eamings Stock Loss Equity
Balance, December 31, 2004 6689 $34025 $2327 § - S (484 $ 35,868
Comprehensive income;

Net Income 6,210 6,210

Net unrealized holding loss on securities {665} {665)
Total comprehensive income 5,545
Dividends on common stock ($0.17 per share} {1,155) {1,155}
5% Stock Dividend, including cash-in-lieu of

fractional shares 3,481 (3,485) (4
Common stock purchased (24) (242} {242)
Issuance of common stock:

Employee benefit plans 198 917 917
Balance, December 31, 2005 6,863 $38423 § 3897 § (242 5{1,149) 540,929
Cumulative effect of adjustments
resulting from the adoption of
SAB No. 108, net of tax (492} (492)
Adjusted Balance at December 31, 2005 6863 $38423 $ 3405 S (242 $(1,149) $ 40,437
Comprehensive income:

Net Income 5,845 5.845

Net unrealized security gains 325 325
Total comprehensive income 6,170
Dividends on common stock (50.19 per share) {1,307 (1,307)
5% Stock Dividend, including cash-in-liev of

fractiona! shares 4,987 (4,992 (5)
Issuance of common stock:

Employee benefit plans 86 933 933
Balance, December 31, 2006 6,949 S§44343 § 2951 § (242 S (824) $ 46,228
comprehensive income:;

Net Income 4,725 4,725

Net unrealized securities gains 348 348

Net unrealized loss on

cash flow hedge derivative {14 gl )]
Total comprehensive income 5,059
Dividends on common stock (5.20 per share) (1,381 (1.381)
S% Stock Dividend, including cash-in-lieu of
fractional shares 3,820 (3,823) 3
Common stock purchased (380) 3,927) 3,927
Issuance of common stock:

Employee benefit plans 158 1,284 1,284

Balance, December 31, 2007 6,727 $49447 § 2472 $(4,169) $ (390 $47.260

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.




CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows

(In thousands}

For the years ended December 31,

2007 ! 2006 2005
Operating activitles;
Net income $ 4,725 § 5845 $ 6,210
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in)
provided by operating activities
Provision for loan losses 1,550 1,550 1.850
Depredation and amortization 1,076 B35 1,033
Deferred income tax benefit (693) {541) {16)
Net security gains (36) 69) (69)
Cain on sale of SBA loans held for sale, net (2,399) {2,972 (2,956}
Gain on sale of Mortgage loans (52) (363} (382}
Gain on sale of other loans - 82 -
Origination of Mortgage ioans held for sale 2,963) (20,897 {25,238)
Origination of SBA loans held for sale {53,948) (39,483) {43,884)
Proceeds from the sale of Mortgage loans held for sale, net 3,016 21,260 25,620
Proceeds from the sale of SBA loans held for sale, net 43,580 44,183 40,413
Net change in other assets and liabilities 1,932 {(1,689) (168)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (3,812) 7577 2013
Investing activitles:
Purchases of securities held to maturity - (8,780 (25,434)
Purchases of securitles available for sale (18,630) {13,628) (7,134)
Purchases of FHLB stock, at cost (1,442 (782} (935)
Maturities and principal payments on securities held to maturity 9,034 6,603 8,155
Maturities and principal payments on securities available for sale 11,032 14,695 14,014
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale 5,346 251 5,362
Purchases of loans - (8,026} -
Net cash received from branch acquisition - - 4,379
Proceeds from the sale Of other real estate owned 845 369 345
Net increase in loans {71,328) (53,648) (54,444)
Purchases of premises and equipment {1,587 2,049 (2,819
Net cash used in investing activities (66,930) {64,995} (58,511)
Financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 34,803 44 605 66,919
Proceeds from new borrowings 40,000 25,000 10,000
Repayments of borrowings {10,000} (10,000) (5,000
Issuance of Trust Preferred Securities - 15,000 -
Redemption of Trust Preferred Securities 9,000 - -
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 1,119 781 853
Purchase of common stock (3,927) - (242)
Cash dividends paid on common stock 1,37 (1,291) {(1,079)
Net cash provided by financing activities 51,618 74,095 71.451
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {19,124} 16,677 15,353
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 55.436 38,759 23,406
Cash and cash equivalents at end-of-year $ 36,312 $ 55.436 $ 38,759
supplementa) disclosures:
Cash:
Interest paid $24314 $ 19,231 $ 11,505
Income taxes paid 3,358 4,459 2.671%
Noncash investing activities:
Transfer of loans to other real estate owned 540 402 178
Transfer of loans from held to maturity to availabie for sale - 7,219 -

The accompanying notes 1o the consolldated financial statemnents are an integraf part of these statements.




NotES 10

ConNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Overview

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Unity Bancorp. Inc. {the "Parent
Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Unity Bank (or
when consolidated with the Parent Company, the
*Company). All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Unity Bancorp, InC. is a bank holding company
incorporated in New Jersey and registered under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. Its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Unity Bank (the "Bank*, or when
consolidated with the Parent Company, the *Company™) is
chartered by the New Jersey Department of Banking and
Insurance. The Bank provides a full range of commercial
and retail banking services through 17 branch offices
located in Hunterdon, Middlesex, Somerset, Union and
warren counties in New Jersey and Northampton County
in Pennsylvania. These services include the acceptance of
demand, savings, and time deposits and the extension of
consumer, real estate, Small Business Administration (“SBA")
and other commercial credits. Unity investment Services,
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, is used to hold
part of the Bank’s investrment portfolio.

The Company has two statutory trust subsidiaries that
are wholly-owned by Unity Bancorp, Inc.

See details in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Use of Estimates in the
Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabllities at the date of
the financial staternents and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Amounts requiring the use of significant estimates include
the allowance for [oan losses, valuation of deferred tax
assets, the carrying value of loans held for sale and other
real estate owned and the fair value disclosures of financial
instruments. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years
to conform with the current year presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivatents

Cash ang cash equivalents include ¢ash on hand.,
amounts due from banks, federal funds sold, and interest-
bearing deposits.

securities

The Company classifies its securities into two
categories, held to maturity and available for sale.
Securities are classified as securities held to maturity based
on management's intent and ability to hold them to

maturity. Such securities are stated at cost, adjusted for
unamortized purchase premiums and discounts on the
level yield method. Securities not classified as securities
held to maturity are classified as securities available for sale
and are stated at fair value, Unrealized gains and losses on
securities available for sale are excluded from results of
operations and are reported as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, het of taxes. Securities classified as
available for sale include securities that may be sold in
response to changes in interest rates, changes in
prepayment risks or for asset/liability management
purposes. The cost of securities sold is determined on a
specific identification basis. Galns and losses on sales of
securities are recognized in the statements of income on
the date of sale. Management evaluates securities for
other-than-temporary impairment at least on a
guarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or
market concern warrants such evaluation.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of the
Federal Home Loan Bank {"FHLB") system to hold stock of
its district FHLB according to a predetermined formula.
The stock is carried at cost. As of December 31, 2007 and
2006, the Company held $4.3 million and $2.9 million in
FHLB stock, respectively.

Loans Held To Maturity and Loans Held For Sale

Loans held to maturity are stated at the unpaid
principal balance, net of uneamed discounts and net of
deferred I0an origination fees and costs. Loan origination
fees, net of direct loan origination costs, are deferred and
are recognized over the estimated life of the related loans
as an adjustment to the loan yleld utilizing the leve! yvield
method,

Interest is credited to operations primarily based upon
the principal amount outstanding. When management
believes there is sufficient doubt as to the ultimate
collectibility of interest on any [oan, interest accruals are
discontinued and all past due interest, previously
recognized as income, is reversed and charged against
current period eamings. Payments received on nonaccrual
loans are applied as principal, Loans are retumed to an
accrual status when collectibility is reasonably assured and
when the loan is brought current as to principal and
interest,

toans and leases are reported as past due when either
interest or principal is unpaid in the following circumstances:
fixed payment loans when the borrower is in arrears for two
or more monthly payments; open end credit for two or
more billing cycles; and single payment notes if interest or
principal remains unpaid for 30 days or more,

Loans are charged off when collection is sufficiently
questionable and when the Bank can no longer justify
maintaining the loan as an asset on the halance sheet,
Loans qualify for charge off when, after thorough analysis,
all possible sources of repayment are insufficient. These
include: 1) potential future cash flow, 2) value of colfateral,
and/or 3} strength of co-makers and guarantors. All
unsecured loans are charged off upon the establishment




of the loan's nonaccrual status. Additionally, all loans
classified as a loss or that portion of the loan classified as a
loss, are charged off. All loan charge-offs are approved by
the Board of Directors.

Nonperforming loans consist of koans that are not
accruing interest (nonaccrual loans) as a result of principal or
interest belng in defautt for a period of 90 days or more or
when the collectibility of principal and interest according to
the contractual terms is in doubt. When a loan is classified as
nonaccrual, interest accruals discontinue and all past due
interest previously recognized as income is reversed and
charged against curent period income. Generally, until the
loan becomes current, any payments received from the
borrower are applied to cutstanding principal unti! such
time as management deterrmines that the financial condition
of the borrower and other factors merit recognition of a
portion of such payments as interest income.

The Company evaluates its loans for impairment. A
loan is considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement, The Company
has defined impaired loans to be all nonaccrual lpans.
Impairment of a loan is measured based on the present
value of expectad future cash flows, net of estimated costs
to sell, discounted at the loan's effective interest rate.
Impairment ¢an also be measured based on a loan's
observable market price or the fair value of collateral, net
of estimated costs to sell, if the foan is collateral
dependent. If the measure of the impaired loan Is less
than the recorded Investment in the loan, the Company
establishes a valuation allowance, of adjusts existing
valuation altowances, with a corresponding charge or credit
to the provision for loan losses.

Loans heid for sale are SBA loans and are reflected at
the lower of aggregate cost or market value.

The Company originates loans to customers under an
SBA program that generally provides for SBA guarantees up
to 85 percent of each loan. The Company generally sefls
the guaranteed portion of each ioan to a third
party and retains the senvicing. The premium received
on the sale of the guaranteed portion of SBA loans and
the present value of future cash flows of the servicing asset
are recognized in income. The unguaranteed portion is
generally held in the portfolio. During the third quarter of
2007, the Company announced Its strategy to retain more
SBA loans in its portfolio due to lower premiums on sales.

Serviced loans sold to others are not included in the
accompanying consolidated batance sheets. Income and
fees collected for loan servicing are credited to noninterest
income when eamed, net of amortization on the related
servicing asset.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales,
when control over the assets has been surrendered.
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be
surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from
the Company, (2 the transferee obtains the right ifree of
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that

right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and {3)
the Company does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase
them before their maturity.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for lgan 1osses is maintained at a level
management considers adequate to provide for probable
loan losses as of the balance sheet date. The allowance is
increased by provisions charged to expense and is reduced
by net charge-offs. The level of the allowance Is based on
management’s evaluation of probable losses in the loan
portfolio, after consideration of prevailing economic
conditions in the Company’s market area. Credit reviews of
the loan portfolio, designed to identify potential charges to
the allowance, are made during the year by management
and a loan review consuitant. A risk rating system,
consisting of multiple grading categories, is utilized as an
analytical too! to assess risk and the appropriate level of toss
reserves. Along with the risk system, management further
evaluates risk characteristics of the loan portfolio under
current economic conditions and considers such factors as
the financial condition of the borrowers, past and expected
loan loss experience, and other factors management feels
deserve recognition in establishing an adequate reserve.
This risk assessment process is performed at least quarterty,
and, as adjustments become necessary, they are realized in
the periods in which they become known. Although
management attempts to maintain the allowance at a level
deemed adequate to provide for probable losses, future
additions to the allowance may be necessary based upon
certain factors including changes in market conditions and
underlying collateral values. In addition, various regulatory
agencies periodically review the adequacy of the Company’s
allowance for loan losses. Thase agencies may require the
Company to make additional provisions based on their
judgments about information available to them at the time
of their examination.

Allowance for Unfunded Loan Commitments

The Company maintains &n aliowance for unfunded
lpan commitments that is maintained at a leve! that
management believes is adequate to absorb estimated
probable losses. Adjustments to the allowance are made
through other expense and applied to the allowance which
is maintained in other liabilitiss.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings and eguipment are
stated at cost less accumulat=d deprediation. Depreciation
is computed on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, not to exceed 30 vears.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned is recorded at the fair value at
the date of acquisition, with a charge to the allowance for
loan losses For any excess over fair value. Subseguently,
other real estate owned is camied at the lcwer of cost or fair
value, as determined by current appraisals, less estimated
selling costs. Certain costs incurred in preparing properties




for sale are capitalized to the extent that the appraisal
amount exceeds the carry value, and expenses of holding
foreclosed properties are charged to operations as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes according to
the asset and liabitity method. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the
enacted tax rates applicable to taxable income for the
years in which those temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized
In income in the period that includes the enactment date.
Valuation reserves are established against certain deferred
tax assets when it is more likely than not that the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. Increases or decreases in
the valuation reserve are charged or credited to the
income tax provision.

When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some
positions taken would be sustained upon examination by
the taxing authorities, while others are subject to
uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the
amount of the position that ultimately would be sustained.
The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial
statements in the period during which, based on all
available evidence, management believes it is more likely
that the position will be sustained upon examination,
including the resolution of appeals or littgation processes,
if any. The evaluation of a tax position taken Is considered
by itself and not offset or aggregated with other positions.
Tax positions that meet the more likely recognition
threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax
benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized
upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The
portion of benefits associated with tax positions taken that
exceeds the amount measured as described above is
reflected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the
accompanying balance sheet along with any associated
interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing
authorities upon examination.

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax
benefits are recognized In income tax expense on the
income statement.

Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing the
net income for the period by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net
income per share is computed by dividing net income for
the period by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for the period presented adjusted for
the effect of the stock options, under the treasury stock
method. The amounts reported reflect the impact of the
5 percent stock distribution paid on June 29, 2007
See Note 17 for further detail on Income per
Common Share.

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income congsists of the change in
unrealized {loss) gain on securities available for sale and
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges that were
reported as a component of shareholders’ equity, net of
tax. For additional information see Note 23.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company uses derivative instruments, such as
interest rate swaps, to manage our interest rate risk, The
Company recognizes all derivative instruments at fair value
as either assets or liabilities in other assets or other
liabilities. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a
derivative instrument depends on whether it has been
designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship.
For derivatives not designated as an accounting hedge, the
gain or {oss is recognized in trading noninterest income.

For those derivative instruments that are designated
and qualify as hedging instruments, the Company must
designate the hedging instrument, based on the exposure
being hegged, as a fair value hedge, a cash fiow hedge or
a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. The
Company does not have any Fair value hedges or hedges
of foreign operations.

The Company formally documents the relationship
between the hedging instruments and hedged item, as
well as the risk management objective: and strategy before
undertaking a hedge. For hedging relationships in which
effectiveness is measured, the Company formally assesses,
both at inception and on an ongoing basis, if the
derivatives are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item. If itis
determined that the derivative instrurnent is not highly
effective as a hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued.

For derlvatlves that are designated as cash flow hedges,
the effective portion of the gain or loss on derivatives is
reported as a component of other comprehensive income
or Inss and subsequently reclassified in interest income in
the same period during which the hedged transaction
affects earnings. As a result, the change in fair value of
any ineffective portion of the hedging derivative is
recognized immediately in earnings.

The Company will discontinue hedge accounting when
it is determined that the derivative is no longer qualifying
as an effective hedge; the derivative expires or is soid,
terminated or exercised; or the derivative no longer
qualifies as a fair value or cash flow hedge or it is no longer
probable that the forecasted transaction will occur by the
end of the originally specified time period. f the Company
determines that the derivative no bonger qualifies as a cash
flow or fair value hedge and therefore hedge acoounting is
discontinued, the derivative will continue to be recorded
on the balance sheet at its fair value with changes in fair
value included in current earnings.

Stock-Based Compensation

As of January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share-Based
Payment (*Statement 123R") using the “modified




prospective application.” Statement 123R requires public
companies to recognize compensation expense related to
stock-based compensation awards over the period during
which an employee s required to provide service for the
award. The provisions apply to all awards granted after
the required effective date including existing awards not
vested, modified, repurchased or canceled. Prior to
January 1, 2006, the Company applied Accounting
Principles Board Opinion 25 and related interpretations

in accounting for its option plans. No stock-based
compensation cost was reflected in net income, as all
options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of their undertying common
stock on the date of grant.

Compensation expense related to stock-based
compensation awards totaled $112 thousand and $25
thousand in 2007 and 2006. The following tables represent
the impact of the adoption of SFAS 123R on the
Company's financial statements in 2007 and 2006.

December 31, 2007 Under SFAS 123 R
Net income before
provision for income taxes $ 6,703
Net income $4,725
Net income per

common share - Basic $ 068
Net income per

common share - Diluted $ 066
December 31, 2006 Under SFAS 123 R
Net income before
provision for income taxes $8788
Net income $ 5,845
Net income per

commeon share - Basic $ 085
Net income per

common share - Diluted $ 081

The following table illustrates the effect an net income
and earnings per share for 2005 if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB
Statement NO, 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation as amended, to stock-based compensation.

Proforma

{In thousands, except per share data! 2005

Net income to commaon shareholders

as reported: $6,210

Proforma 6,143

Income per share:
Basic as reported $ 092
Basic Proforma 0.91
Diluted as reparted 0.87
Diluted Profarma 0.87

For additional information on our stock-based
compensation see Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is accounted for under the cost method
and accordingly is presented as a reduction in
shareholders’ equity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The Company purchased life insurance policies on
certain members of management, Bank owned life
insurance (*BOU") is recorded at its cash surrender vatue or
the amount that can be realized,

Advertising
The Company expenses the costs of advertising in the
period incurred.

Dividend Restrictions

Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital
levels that may iimit the dividends paid by our bank to our
holding company or by our holding company to our
shareholders.

Operating Segments

While management monitors the revenue streams of
the various products and services, operating results and
financial performance is evaluated on a company-wide
basis. Operating segments are aggregated into one, as
operating results for all seaments are simitar. Accordingly,
all financial service operations are aggregated in one
reportable operating segment.

servicing Assets

Servicing assets represent the allocated value of
retained servicing rights on loans sold. Servicing assets are
expensed in proportion to, and over the geriod of,
estimated net servicing revenues. mpairment is evaluated
based on stratifying the underlying financial assets by date
of origination and term. Fair value s determined using
prices for similar assets with similar characteristics, when
available, or based upon discounted cash flows using
market-based assumptions. Any impairment, if temporary,
would be reported as a valuation allowance.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In Decernber 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (*FASB") issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS*) No. 144 (R}, Business Combinations, and
SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling interests in Consofidated
Financial Statements. SFAS Mo. 141 revises the previous
statement on business combinations and requires the
acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all
{and only the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
transaction; establishes the acquisition date fair value as
the measurement objective for all assets acquired and
liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer to disclose to
investors and other users all of the financial effect of the
business combination. As this Statement applies
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after December
15, 2008, this Statement is not currentty applicable to the




Company. SFAS No. 160 requires all entities to report
noncontrolling (minority} interests in subsidiaries in the
same way, as equity in the consolidated financial
statements, This Staterment is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2008 and is not currently
applicable to the Company, as it does not have any
minority interests in its subsidiaries,

Also in December 2007, the SEC released Staff
Accounting Bulletin {SAB) No. 110, Use of a “Simplified”
Estimate of Expected Termn under SFAS 123R, Share Based
Payment, which expresses the views of the staff regarding
the use of a “simplified” method, as discussed in SAB No.
107 (“SAB 1077, in developing an estimate of expected
term of “plain vanilla® share options in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
{revised 2004), Share-Based Payment. In particular, the
staff indicated in SAB 107 that it will accept a company’s
election to use the simplified method, regardiess of
whether the company has sufficient information to make
a more refined estimate of expected term. At the time
SAB 107 was issued, the SEC believed that more detailed
externia) information about employee exercise behavior
would, over time, become readily available to companies.
Therefore, the staff stated in SAB 107 that it would not
expect a company to use the simplified method for share
option grants after December 31, 2007, Under certain
circumstances, the use of the simplified method beyond
December 34, 2007 will continue to be acceptable.

In November 2007, the SEC released SAB No. 109,
Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Velue
Through Earnings, which expresses the current view of the
staff that the expected net future cash flows related to the
associated servicing of the loan should be included In the
measurement of all written loan commitments that are
accounted for at fair value through eamings.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, which allows an entity the irrevocable option to
elect fair value for the initial and subseguent measurement
for certain financial assets and liabilities on a contract-by-
contract basis. Subsequent changes in fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities would be recognized in
earnings when they occur. SFAS 159 further establishes
certain additional disclosure requirements. SFAS 159 is
effective for the Company’s financial statements for the
year beginning on January 1, 2008, with earlier adoption
permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact
adoption of SFAS 159 will have on the Company's financial
condition and results of operations.

in September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair
Value Measurements. This Statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement
applies under other accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB
having previously concluded in those accounting

‘pronouncements that fair value is the relevant

measurement attribute, Accordingly, this Statement does
not require any new fair value measurements. The
Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal
years. The Company does not expect the adoption of
Statement No. 157 to have a material impact on its
financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation NO.
48, Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes. The
Interpretation darifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109,
Acocounting for Income Taxes. This Interpretation presents
a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
Interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The adoption of Interpretation No. 48
did not have a materiat impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS NO. 156,
Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets. SFAS NO. 156
amends Statermnent 140 to require that all separately
recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities be
initially measured at fair value, If practicable. This
Statement permits, but does not require, the subsequent
measurement of separately recognized servicing assets
and servicing liabilities at fair value, An entity that uses
derivative instruments to mitigate the risks inherent in
servicing assets and servicing liabilities is required to
account for those derivative instruments at fair value,
Under this Statement, an entity can elect subsequent fair
value measurement to account for its separately
recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities. By
electing that option, an entity may simplify its accounting
because this Statement permits income statement
recognition of the potential offsetting changes in fair value
of those servicing assets and servicing liabilities and
derivative instruments in the same acoounting period. The
Statement Is effective In the first fiscal year beginning after
September 15, 2006 with earlier adoption permitted. The
adoption of Statement No. 156 did not have a materlal
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

2. Goodwill

The Company accounts for goodwill and other
intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Gooawill
and Intangible Assets, which includes requirements to test
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets on an annual
basis for impairment, rather than amortize them.
Management believes that the Company’s recorded
goodwill totaling $1.5 milion, which resulted from the
2005 acquisition of its Phillipsburg, New Jersey branch, Is
not impaired as of December 31, 2007.




3. Restrictions on Cash

Federal law requires depository institutions to maintain
a prescribed amount of cash or noninterest-bearing

4. Securities

This table provides the major components of securities
available for sale and held to maturity at amortized cost and

balances with the Federal Reserve Bank. As of December estimated falr value at December 31,
34, 2007 and 2006, the Company was required to maintain
reserve balances of $80 thousand.
2007 2006
Gross Gross  Estimated Gross  (ross  Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(In thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities available for sale:
US Government sponsored entities $ 7473 $ 61 $ 18 $ 7516 $11057 5 24 § 2100 51087
State and political subdivisions 2,945 - (34) 2,911 2,945 - (31) 2.914
Mortgage-backed securities 47242 157 {5100 46,889 48,267 98 (1,216) 47,148
Corporate debt securities 3,973 - (416) 3,557 972 - 12 960
Other equities 3,989 29 (36) 3,982 730 42 24 748
Total securities available for sale § 65,622 § 247 $11,014) $64855 563,971 $164 $11,493) $62,642
Securities held to maturity:
LS Government sponsored entities $ 7189  § 93 § - §$ 7282 $8187 § 32 S (34 S 8185
State and political subdivisions 3159 13 (93) 3079 3.160 41 - 3.2
Mortgage-backed securities 22383 95 {208) 22270 26,801 54 {458} 26,397
Corporate debt securities 1,005 3 - 1,008 4,667 1 12 4,666
Total securities held to maturity $ 33,736 $204 § (301 $33639 542815 $138 § (5040 § 42,443

The table below provides the remaining contractual maturities and yields of securities within the investment portfolios.
The carrying value of securities at December 31, 2007 is primarily distributed by contractual maturity. Mortgage-backed
securities and other securities, which may have principal prepayment provisions, are distributed based on contractual
maturity. Expected maturities will differ materially from contractual maturities as a result of early prepayments and calls.
The total weighted average yield excludes equity securities.

After oneyear  After five years

Withinoneyear  through five years  through ten years  After ten years Total camying

(In thousands) Amount  Yeld Amount  Yeld Amount Yeld Amourt Yield Amount  Yeld
Available for sale at fair value:
US Government, sponsored entities $ - % § 995 402% ) 5154 497% $ 1389 608% $ 7516 504%
State and political subdivisions - - 2,911 39 2911 391
Mortgage-backed securities 110 426 865 365 6.213 4.50 39,700 4.79 46,883 4.7
Corporate debt securities - - - - - 3,557 6.26 3,557 6.26
Other equities 698 - - - - - 3,284 589 3,982 2.3

Total securities available forsale § 808 4.26% §1.859 3.84% $11.347 4.60% $50841 495% S64,855 4.86%
Held to maturity at cost:
US Government sponsored entities $1250 4.42% $3,126 503% 5 1325 59?% $ 1488 634% § 7.18% 5.37%
State and political subdivisions - 3159 446 3159 4.46
Mortgage-backed securities - 31 5.57 5912 474 16,440 5.29 22383 511
Corporate debt securities 1.005 445 - - - - 1005 4.45

Total securities held to maturity $ 2,255 443% $3.457 5.02% $ 7.237 4.96% $21087 520% $33.736 5.08%




Gross realized gains on securitles available for sale
amounted to $50 thousand, $69 thousand and $81 thousand,
while gross realized losses amounted to $621 thousand, $0
and $12 thousand for the vears 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. These net amounts are included in noninterest
income as securities gains in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. Included in gross realized losses for 2007 was an
other-than-temporary impairment charge of $607 thousand
which was recorded on three Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation ("FHLMC or Fregddie Mac™) investment grade,
perpetual callable preferred securities. These securities are
classified as available for sale and due to the recent decline in
market value and the uncertainty that they will recover their
$3.9 million book value within a reasonable period, the
Company recorded the unrealized loss of $607 thousand as
other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2007.

Less than 12 months

The FHLMC securities were investment grade at the time of
purchase and remain investrnent grade with ratings of AA- by
S&P and Aa3 by Moody's. The securities continue to perform
according to their contractual terms and all dividend
payments are current.

Securities with a carrying value of $54.9 million and $47.6
million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were
pledged to secure government deposits, secured other
borrowings and for other purposes required or permitted by
law. Included in these figures was $2.9 million and $10.7
million pledged against government deposits at December
31. 2007 angd 2006, respectively.

The fair value of securities with unrealized lossas by
length of time that the individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position at December 341, 2007
and 2006 are as follows:

Greater than 12 months Total

Estimated  Unrealized Estimated Unrealized  Estimated Unrealized

{in thousands) Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
2007
US Government sponsored entities s M2 - $ 5004 § (18 $5206 § (19
State and political subdivisions 3,035 107 1,270 (200 4,305 1270
Mortgage-backed securitles 9,569 {r 35,827 641) 45,396 (ne
Corporate debt securities 3,558 {4186) - - 3,558 (316)
Qther equities - - 559 (36) 559 (36)
Total temporarily impaired investments  $ 16,274 $ (600) $42750 § (M9 $59024 ${(1315
2006
US Government sponsored entities § 1,743 S B $10791 § (238 $12,534 S (244
State and political subdivisions 1,067 1) 2,330 30 3,397 131)
Mortgage-backed securities 4,694 {73) 58,123 {1,601 62,817 (1,674
Corporate debt securities - - 4,068 24 4,068 {24)
Other equities - - 586 24i 586 24)

Total temporarily impaired investments  § 7,504 $ (8D §7588 (1917 $ 83,402 $11,997)

Management evaluates securities for other-than-
temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concern warrants such
evaluation. Consideration is given to: (1} the length of time
and the extent to which the fair value has been less than
cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of
the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to
retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery In fair value,

As of December 31, 2007, the number of securities in an
unrealized loss position in each category was as follows: six
securities of U.S. Government sponsored entities, fourteen
state and political subdivision securities, seventy-six
mortgage-backed securities, three corporate debt securities,
and eight other equity securities. The unrealized losses in
each of these categories are discussed in the paragraphs
that follow.




U.S. Government sponsored entities and state and
political subdivision securities: The unrealized losses on
investments in securlties were caused by interest rate
increases. The contractual terms of these Investments do
not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less
than the par value of the investment. Because the
Company has the ability and intent to hold these
investments until a market price recovery or maturity,
these Investments are not considered other-than-
temporarily impaired.

Mortgage-backed securities: The unrealized losses on
investments in mortgage-backed securities were caused by
interest rate increases. The contractual cash flows of these
securities are guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Ginnie Mae and
the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. it is
expected that the securities would not be settled at a price
significantly less than the par value of the investment.
Because the decline In falr vatue is attributable to changes
in interest rates and not credit quality, and because the
Company has the ability and intent to hotd these
investments until a market price recovery or maturity,
these investments are not considered other-
than temporarily impaired.

Corporate debt securities: The unrealized losses on
corporate debt securities were caused by interest rate
increases. The contractual terms of the bonds do not
allow the securities to be settled at a price less than the
par value of the investments. The credit ratings on these
bonds have not decreased during the period. The decline
in face value Is attributed to changes in interest rates and
not credit quality, and because the Company has the ability
and intent to hold these investments until a market price
recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered
other-than temporarily impaired.

Other equity securities: Included in this category is
stock of other financial institutions, The unrealized losses
on other equity securities are caused by decreases in the
market prices of the shares, The Company has the ability
and intent to hold these shares until a market price
recovery: therefore these investments are not considered
other-than temporarily impaired.

5. Loans

The composition of the loan portfolio, net of unearned
discount and deferred loan origination fees and costs, at
December 31 was as follows:

SBA foans sold to others and serviced by the Company
are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. The.total amount of such loans serviced, but
owned by outside investors, amounted to approximately
$140.4 million and $145.3 million at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the fair
value of servicing rights was $2.1 million and $2.3 miflion,
respectively. The fair value of servicing rights was
determined using a discount rate of 15 percent, constant
prepayment rate speeds ranging from 15 to 18, and
interast strip multiples ranging from 2.85 to 3.25,
depending on each individual credit. A summary of the
changes in the related servicing asset for the past three
years follows:

Years ending December 34,

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Balance at beginning of year  $2,294 $2.438 $2,017
SBA servicing rights capitalized 797 755 1,081
SBA servicing rights amortized  (1,035) {899) {660)
Provision for 10ss in fair value - - -

Balance at end-of-year $2056 $2294 $2438

{In thousands) 2007 2006
SBA held for sale $ 248640 $ 12273
SBA held to maturity 68,875 66,802
Commercial 365,786 312,195
Residential mortgage 73.697 63,493
Consumer 57134 52,927
Total loans $590132  $507,690

The Company had an offsetting balance of $2.2
million and $2.3 million related to the retained portion
of the unsold SBA loans at December 31, 2007 and 2008,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2007 and 20086, the Bank's recorded
investment in impaired loans, defined as nonaccrual loans,
was $5.5 million and $8.9 million, respectively, and the
related valuation allowance was $372 thousand and $1.8
million at December 31, 2007 and 2006. This valuation
allowance Is included in the allowance for {oan josses in the
accompanying balance sheets. Interest income that would
have been recorded had these impaired loans performed
under the original contract terms was $475 thousand and
$850 thousand for 2007 and 2006 respectively. Average
impaired Ioans for 2007 and 2006 were $5.7 million and
44.6 million respectively. There were no loans restructured
during 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, there were 541 thousand in
loans past due 90 or more days and stifl accruing interest.
In December 2006 and 2005, there were $78 thousand and
no loans past due 90 or more days and still accruing
interest, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, approximately 95 percent of
the Company’'s lpans were secured by real estate. A portion
of the Company’s SBA loans are located outside the
Company’s lending area. The Company has approximately
13 percent of the total loan portfolio to various unrelated
and unaffiliated borrowers in the Hotel/Motel industry.
Such loans are collateralized by the underlying real property
financed and/or partially guaranteed by the SBA.

As of December 34, 2007, residential mortgages
provided $37.0 million in borrowing capacity at the
Federal Home Loan Bank compared to $29.0 million at
December 31, 2006.




in the ordinary course of business, the Company may
extend credit to officers, directors or their assoclates.
These loans are subject to the Company’s normal iending
policy. An analysis of such loans, all of which are current as

7. Premises and Equipment
The detail of premises and equipment as of December
34, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

to principal and interest payments, is as follows: n thousand.si ‘ 2007 2006
Land and buildings . $ 9658 $ 9,088
{n thousands) po7  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5,192 4316
- - - - 2 Leasehold improvements 2628 2518
Loans to officers, directors or their associates - -
at December 34, 2006 $17.456 Cross premises and equipment 17,478 15,922
New loans 340  less: Accumulated depreciation (5,376} (4,312
Repayments ' 1,063 Net premises and equipment  $ 12,102 $11.610
Loans to officers, directors or their associates )
at December 31, 2007 $16,733 Amounts charged to noninterest expense for

6. Allowance for Loan Losses &
Unfunded Loan Commitments

The allowance for loan losses is based on estimates.
Ultimate losses may vary from current estimates. These
estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments
become known, they are reflected in operations in the
periods in which they become known.

An analysis of the change In the allowance for lpan
losses during years 2005 through 2007 is as follows:

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Balance at beginning of year $7624 $6892 $5856
Provision charged toexpense 1,550 1550 1850

9174 8442 7706

Charge-offs 975 933 1173
Recoveries 184 115 359
Net charge-offs ™ 818 814
Balance at end-of-year $8383 §$7624 $68%

The Company maintains an allowance for unfunded
loan commitments that is maintained at a level that
management believes is adequate to absorb estimated
probable losses. Adjustments to the aliowance are made
through other expense and applied to the allowancce
which is maintained in other liabilities. The commitment
reserve was $102 thousand and $127 thousand at
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

depreciation of premises and equipment amounted
to $1.1 million in 2007, $980 thousand in 2006, and
$867 thousand in 2005.

The Company currently accounts for all of its leases as
operating leases. In addition, the Company has one lease
with a related party. The Company leases its Clinton, New
Jersey headquarters from a partnership in which two
board members, Messrs. D. Dallas and R. Dallas are
partners. Under the lease for the facility, the partnership
received aggregate rental payments of 553 thousand, in
2007 and 2006 and $483 thousand in 2005, respectively.
The Company believes that these rent payments reflect
market rents and that the lease reflects terms that are
comparable to those, which could have been obtained in 2
lease with an unaffiliated third party. The annual base rent
under the lease is fixed until 2009.

8. Other Assets

The detail of other assets as of December 31, 2007 and
2006 s as follows:

{in thousands} 2007 2006

FHLB stock $ 4395 S 2.953
Deferred tax asset 3,939 2,460
Prepaid expenses 586 648
Net receivable due from SBA 388 350
Other real estate owned 106 21
Other 820 720

Total other assets $10.234 $8342




9. Deposits
The following schedule details the maturity distribution of time deposits:

Morethan3  More than 6

3 months through through More than

{in thousands) or less 6 months 12 months 12 months Total
At December 31, 2007

$100.000 or more $27.150 $ 25,956 $19,474 $15435 § B8NS
Less than $100,000 $ 44533 $41,19% $ 40,992 $41529  $168,244
At December 31, 2006

$100,000 or more §34846 § 6,667 $13.119 $ 9690 § 64322
Less than $100,000 $43238 $16,878 $ 22,807 $ 28,147 $111,070

10. Borrowed Funds and Subordinated Debentures

The following tables present the period-end and average balances of borrowed funds and subordinated debentures for
the last two years with resultant rates; as well as the expected maturities over the next five years:

2007 2006
(in thousands) Amount Rate Amount Rate
FHLB borrowings and Repurchase agreements:
At December 31, $ 75,000 8.39% $ 45,000 4.32%
Year-to-date average 651,889 4.29% $31,779 3.93%
Maximum outstanding $ 75,000 $ 45,000
Repurchase agreements:
At December 31, $ 10,000 2.9% $ 10,000 2.78%
Year-to-date average $10,795 3.01% $ 10,000 2.78%
Maximum outstanding $ 20,000 $ 10,000
Subordinate debentures:
At December 31, $ 15,465 6.63% $ 24,744 7.66%
Year-to-date average $22.278 7.74% 513,982 8.63%
Maximum outstanding $ 24,704 $24,744
{In thousands) 2008 2009 2010 2m 2012 Thereafter
FHLB borrowings and
repurchase agreements $5.000 5 . -$10,000 s - $ - $60000
Repurchase agreements . $ 10,000 - - - -
subordinated debentures . - - . $ 15,465
Total $ 5,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 S - S - § 75,465




FMLB Borrowings

The FHLB borrowings at December 31, 2007 consisted
of four $10 miliion advances, three $10 milfion repurchase
agreement and a $5 million overnight line of credit
advance. The terms of these transactions are as follows;

» The FHLB Qvernight Line of Credit Advance was issued on
December 29, 2007 at a rate of 3.61 percent and was
repaid on January 2, 2008.

« The FHLB advance that was issued on December 19, 2000
has a fixed rate of interest at 4.92 percent, matures on
December 20, 2010 and is callable quarterly on the 19" of
March, June, September and December.

« The FHLB advance that was issued on April 27, 2005 has a
fixed rate of 3.70 percent, matures on April 27, 2015 and
is callable on April 27, 2008 and quarterly thereafter on
the 27 of July, October, January and Aprit,

e The FHLB advance that was issued on November 2, 2006
has a fixed rate of 4.025 percent, matures on November
2, 2016 and is caliable on November 2, 2007 and
quarterly thereafter on the 2™ of February, May, August
and November.

» The FHLB advance that was issued on August 10, 2007
has a fixed rate of 4.234%, matures on August 10, 2017
and is callable on August 10, 2009 and quarterly there-
after on the 107 of November, February, May and August.

« The FHLB repo-advance that was issued on December 15,
2006 has a fixed rate of 4.13 percent, matures on
December 15, 2016 and is callable on December 15, 2008
and quarterly thereafter on the 15 of March, June,
September and December,

» The FHLB repo-advance that was issued on April 5, 2007
has a fixed rate of 4.208%, matures on April 5, 2017 and
is callable on April 5, 2009 and quarterly thereafter on the
S of July, Qctober, January and April.

* The FHLB repg-advance that was issued on December 20,
2007 has afixed rate of 3.337%, matures on December
20, 2017 and is callable on December 20, 2010 and
quarterty thereafter on the 20® of March, June,
September and Cecember,

Due to the call provisions of these advances, the expected

maturity could differ from the contractual maturity.

Repurchase Aareements

At December 31, 2007, the Company was a party in a
$10 milion repurchase agreement that was entered into in
March 2004, has a term of 5 years expiring on March 11,
2009, and a rate of 2.78 percent. The borrowing may be
called by the issuer if the 3-month London Inter-bank
overnight rate ("LIBOR") is greater than or equal to 7
percent,

Subordinated Debentures

On September 26, 2007, the Company chose to redeem
$9.0 million of subordinated debentures that were issued
by Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust f on September 26, 2002 at 2
floating rate of 3-month Libor plus 340 basis points. At
December 31, 2007, the Company was a party in the
following subordinated debenture transactions:

* On July 24, 2006, Unity (NJ} Statutory Trust I, a statutory
business trust and wholly-owned subsidiary of Unity
Bancorp Inc., issued $10.0 million of floating rate capital
trust pass through securities to investors due on July 24,
2036. The subordinated debentures are redeemable in
whole or part, prior to maturity but after July 24, 2011.
The floating interest rate on the subordinated
debentures is the three-month UBOR plus 159 basis
points and re-prices quarterly. The floating interest rate
at December 31, 2007 was 6.47 percent,

+ On December 19, 2006, Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust lil,
statutory business trust and wholly-owned subsidiary of
Unity Bancorp Inc., issued $5.0 million of floating rate
capital trust pass through securities to investors due on
December 19, 2036. The subordinated debentures are
redeemable in whole or part, prior to maturity but after
December 19, 2011. The floating interest rate on the
subordinated debentures is the three-month LUBOR plus
165 basis points and re-prices quarterly. The floating
interest rate at December 31, 2007 was 6.77 percent.

The capital securities in each of the above transactions
have preference over the common securities with respect
to liguidation and other distributions and qualify as Tier |
capital. In accordance with Financial Accounting

Interpretation No.46, Consolidation of Variable interest

Entities, as revised December 2003, the Company does not

consalidate the accounts and related activity of Unity INJ)

Statutory Trust Il and Unity (N Statutory Trust Il The

additional capital from each of these transactions was used

to bolster the Company’s capital ratios and for general
corporate purposes, including among other things, capital
contributions to Unity Bank and to fund stock repurchases.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Facility Lease Obligations

The Company operates seventeen branches, eleven
branches under operating leases, including its
headquarters, and six branches are owned. In addition, the
Company has a lease on one other location, which Is
subleased to a third party, with the third party paying rent
in equal amounts as per the lease agreement between the
Company and the lessor. The leases’ contractual expiration
range is between the years 2008 and 20M2. The following
schedule summarizes the contractual rent payments for
the future years.

Rent from

QOperating Lease Sublet  NetRent
fin thousands) Rental Payments  Locations  Obligation
2008 $1.245 $ 80 5§ 1165
2009 516 87 429
2010 222 74 148
2044 129 - 129
2012 88 - 83
Thereafter 160 - 160




Total rent expense totaled $4.2 million, $1.1 million, and
$952 thousand for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The Company currently accounts for alt of its leases as
operating leases.

Litigation

The Company may, in the ordinary course of business,
become a party to litigation involving collection matters,
contract daims and other legal proceedings relating to the
conduct of its business. In the best judgment of
management, based upon consultation with counsel, the
consolidated financial position and resuits of operations of
the Company will not be affected materially by the final
outcome of any pending legal proceedings or other
contingent liabilities and commitments.

Commitments to Borrowers

Commitments to extend credit are legally binding loan
commitments with set expiration dates. They are intended
to be disbursed, subject to certain conditions, upon the
request of the borrower. The Company was committed to
advanice approximately $132.0 million to its borrowers as of
December 31, 2007, compared to $159.5 milfion at
December 31, 2006. At December 34, 2007, $31.4 million
of these commitments expire after one year, compared to
$61.2 milfion a year earlier. At December 34, 2007, the
Company had 53.9 million in standby letters of credlt
compared to $1.6 million In 2006. The estimated fair value
of these guarantees is not significant. The Company
believes it has the necessary liquidity to honor all
commitments, Many of these commitments will expire
and never be funded. In addition, approximately 25
percent of these commitments are for SBA loans, which
may be sold in the secondary market.

12. Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities
Derivative Financlal Instruments

The Company has stand alone derivative financial
instruments in the form of interest rate swap agreements,
which derive their valug from underiying interest rates.
These transactlons involve both credit and market risk. The
notional amounts are amounts on which calculations,
payments, and the value of the derivatives are based.
Notional amounts do not represent direct credit
exposures, Direct credit exposure is limited to the net
difference between the calculated amounts to be received
and paid, if any. Such difference. which represents the falr
value of the derivative instruments, is reflected on the
Company’s balance sheet as other assets and other
liabilities.

The Company is exposed to credit-related iosses in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparties to these
agreements. The Company controls the credit risk of its
financial contracts through credit approvals, limits and
monitoring procedures, and does not expect any
counterparties to fail their obligations. The Company
deals only with primary dealers.

Derivative instruments are generally either negotiated
over the counter ("0TC") contracts or standardized

contracts executed on a recognized exchange, Negotiated
QTC derivative contracts are generally entered into
between two counterparties that negotiate specific
agreement terms, including the underiying instrument,
amount, exercise prices and maturity.

Risk Management Policles - Hedging Instruments
The primary focus of the Company’s asset/liability
management program is to monitor the sensitivity of the
Company's net portfolio value and net income under
varylng interest rate scenarios to take steps to control its
risks. On a quarterty basis, the Company evaluates the
effectiveness of entering into any derivative agreement by
measuring the cost of such an agreement in relation to
the reduction in net portfolio value and net income
volatility within an assumed range of interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk Management -
Cash Flow Hedging Instruments

The Company has long-term variable rate cebt as a
source of funds for use in tha Company’s lending and
investment activities and for other general business
purposes. These debt obligations expose the Company to
variability in interest payments due to changes in interest
rates. if interest rates increase, interest expense increases.
Conversely, if interest rates dacrease, interest expense
decreases. Management belizves it is prudent to limit the
variability of a portion of its interest payments and,
therefore, hedged a portion of Its variable-rate interest
payments. To meet this objective, management entered
into interest rate swap agreements whereby the Company
receives variable interest rate payments and makes fixed
interest rate payments during the contract period.

At Becember 31, 2007 and 2006 the information
pertaining to outstanding intarest rate swap agreements
used to hedge variable rate debt is as follows:

{Doflars in thousands! 2007 2006
Notional amount $10,000 $ -
Weighted average pay rate 410% -
Weighted average recelve rate 488 -
Maturity date 8/23/2011 -
Unrealized loss

relating to interest rate swaps (23) -

These agreements provided for the Company to receive
payments at a variable rate determined by a specific index
{three month Libor) in exchange for making payments at a
fixed rate.

At December 34, 2007 the unrealized loss relating to
interest rate swaps was recorded as a derivative liability.
Changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps designated
3s hedging instruments of the variability of cash flows
associated with long-term debt are reported in other
comprehensive income, These amounts subseguently are
reclassified into interest expense as a yield adjustment in
the same period in which the related Interest on the long-
term debt affects earnings. There were no amounts of
other comprehensive income reclassified into interest
expense during the vear ended December 31, 2007,




13, Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ equity increased $4.1 million to $47.3
milkion at December 34, 2007 due to $4.7 million in net
income, $1.3 million from the issuance of common stock
under employee benefit plans and a $348 thousand
appreciation in the market value of the available for sale
securities portfolic, partially offset by $3.9 million in
commaon stock purchases and $1.4 million of cash
dividends declared during 2007. In 2007, the Company
dedlared four dividends totaling $0.20 for the year. The
issuance of common stock under employee benefit plans
includes nonqualified stock options and restricted stock
expense, related entries, employee option exercises and
the tax benefit of options exercised.

On October 21, 2002, the Company authorized the
repurchase of up to 10 percent of its outstanding
comman stock. The amount and timing of purchases will
be dependent on a number of factors, including the price
and avallability of the Company’s shares, general market
conditions and competing alternate uses of funds. During
2007, the Company purchased 380 thousand shares at an
average price of $10.35. As of December 31, 2007, the
Company had purchased a total of 528 thousand shares of
which 125 thousand shares have been retired, leaving 127
thousand shares remaining to be purchased under
the plan,

On April 26, 2007, the Company announced a 5 percent
stock distribution payable on June 29, 2007 to
shareholders of record as of June 15, 2007, and
accordingly, all share amounts have been restated to
include the effect of the distribution.

14. Other Income

The other income components for the years ended
December 31, 2005 through 2007 are as follows:

iin thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Loan referral fees $233 5224 $210
ATM/Check card fees 224 209 200
Other a5 293 N
Total other income 8872 5726 S7M

15. Other Expenses

The other expenses components for the years ended
December 34, 2005 through 2007 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Travel, entertainment,

training & recruiting $ T § 572 § 577

Insurance 359 336 443
sationery & supplies 319 321 254
Director fees 302 225 142
Reserve for commitments (25) 127 -
Other 329 278 218

Total other expenses $2,056 51,859 $1,634

16. Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes are
as follows:

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Income Taxes
Federal - Current provision $2.545 $3325 42950
Federal - Deferred (benefit)

provision (587 (629} 12

Total Federal provision $1,958 $2696 92,938

State - Current provision 126 159 754
State - Deferred {benefit)

provision (106} 88 {4)

Total State provision 20 247 750

Total provision for income taxes $1,978 52,943 53,688

A reconciliation between the reported income taxes and
the amount computed by muttiplying income before taxes
by the statutory Federal income tax rate is as foliows:

(In thousands} 2007 2006 2005
Federal income taxes
at statutory rate $2279 52,988 $3.365
{Decreases) Increases
resulting from:
Tax-exempt interest 114) (58) (43)
Bank owned life insurance {67 (64) (64)
Meals and entertainment A 18 14

State income taxes, net of
Federal income tax effect 13 164 256

Other, net (154) (105 160
Provision for income taxes  $1,978 52943 43,688
Effective tax rate 295% 335% 37.3%

Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary
differences between the financial reporting basis and the
tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities. The
components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31,
2007 and 2006 are as follows:




{In thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $3.240 $3,044
Unrealized loss on securities
available For sale 291 505
{ost interest on nonaccrual loans 289 476
Write-down of available for sale securities 243 -
QOther 455 33
Total deferred tax assets 4,522 4,058
Ceferred tax liabilities:
Deferred loan costs 35 315
Bond accretion 89 85
Goodwil 84 M
Other 59 154
Total deferred tax liabilities 583 598
Net deferred tax asset $3,939 $3.460

The Company computes deferred income taxes under
the asset and liability method. Deferred income taxes are
recognized for tax consequences of “temporary
differences” by applying enacted statutory tax rates to
differences between the financial reporting and the tax
basis of existing assets and ligbilities. A deferred tax liability
is recognized for ail temporary differences that will result in
future taxable income. A deferred tax asset is recognized
for all temporary differences that will result In future tax
deductions subject to reduction of the asset by a valuation
aliowance.

incdluded as a component of shareholders’ equity is an
income tax expense (benefit) refated to unrealized losses
on securities available for sale of $1476) thousand, $199)
thousand and (5408) thousand in 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively,

17. Income per Common Share

The following is a reconciliation of the calculation of
basic and dilutive income per share. Ali share amounts
have been restated to inciude the effects of the 5 percent
stock distribution paid on June 29, 2007.

(In thousands,
except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005
Net income $4725 55845 56,210
Weighted average common

shares outstanding 6800 6912 6748
Plus: Potential dilutive

common stock 269 345 3
Diluted average common

shares outstanding 7169 7,257 7,099
Net Income per common share -

Basic $068 508 509

Diluted $066 508 $087

Stock options for 437 thousand, 4 thousand and
7 thousand shares were not considered in computing
diluted earnings per common share for 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively, because they were antidilutive,

18. SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108

In September 2006, the S=C released SAE 108. The
transition provisions of SAB 108 permit the Company to
adjust for the cumulative effect on retained earnings of
immaterial errors relating to prior years. SAB 108 also
requires the adjustment of any prior quarterly financial
statements within the fiscal year of adoption for the
effects of such errors on the quarters when the
Information is next presented. Such adjustments do not
require previously filed reports with the SEC to be
amended. In accordance with SAB 108, the Company has
adjusted the beginning retained earnings for fiscal year
2006 In the accompanying consoligated financial
statements for the items described below. The Company
considers these adjustments to be immaterial to prior
periods.

The Company adjusted its beginning retained earnings
for 2006 related to the accounting for operating ieases.
This adjustment resulted in a $492 thousand reduction in
retained earnings reésulting from the understatement of
lease expense.

19. Regulatory Capital

A significant measure of the strength of a financial
institution is its capital base. Federal regulators have
classified and defined capital into the following
components: (1) ter 1 capital, which includes tanglble
shareholders’ equity for common stock, qualifying
preferred stock and certain qualifying hybrid instruments,
and (2} tier 2 capital, which includes a portion of the
allowance for lpan losses, subject to limitations, certain
qualifying long-term debt and preferred stock which does
not qualify for tier 1 capital. Minimum capita! levels are
regulated by risk-based capital adequacy guidelines, which
require a bank to maintain certain capital as a percentage
of assets and certain off-balance sheet items adjusted for
predefined credit risk Factors {risk-adjusted assets). A bank
is required to maintain, at 3 minimum, tier 1 capital as a
percentage of risk-adjusted assets of 4 percent and
combined tier 1 and tier 2 czpital as a percentage of risk-
adjusted assets of 8 percent. In addition to the risk-based
guidelines, regulators require that a bank, which meets the
regulator's highest performance and operation standards,
maintain a minimum leveraga ratio (tier 1 capital as a
percentage of tangible assets) of 3 percent. For those
banks with higher levels of risk or that are experiencing or
anticipating significant growth, the minimum leverage ratio
will be proportionately increased.




The Company's capital amounts and ratics for each of the last two years are presented In the following table.

To Be well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
{In thousands} Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratic
As of December 31, 2007
Leverage ratio $ 61,157 8.25% 2$29,654 4.00% 2%37.067 N/A
Tier i risk-based ratio $ 61,157 9.81% 2524947 4.00% 283741 N/A
Total risk-based capital ratio $68962 11.06% 2549895 8.00% 2$62,369 N/A
As of December 31, 20056
Leverage ratio $60,774  9.08% >526,784 4.00% 2$33,481 N/A
Tier | risk-based ratio $60,774  10.80% 2322.499 4.00% 2533749 N/A
Totai risk-based capital ratio $76473  13.60% 2544,999 8.00% 2556,248 N/A
The Bank’s capital amounts and ratios for the last two years are presented in the following table,
To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions

{in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratic Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2007
Leverage ratio $ 52,249 7.06% >$29617  4.00% 2837.0N1 5.00%

Tier | risk-based ratio §52,249 8.39% 2524919 4.00% 2837378 6.00%
Total risk-based capital ratio $68545 11.00% 2549837 8.00% 262,297  10.00%
As of December 31, 2006

Leverage ratio $ 48,125 7.20% 2$26,723 4.00% 2533404 5.00%
Tier | risk-based ratio § 48,125 8.55% 2$22,518 4.00% 2633777 6.00%
Total risk-based capital ratio $69,670 12.38% 2645,036 8.00% >656,295  10.00%

20. Employee Benefit Plans

The Bank has a 41{k) savings plan covering substantially
all employees. Under the Plan, an employee ¢an contribute
up to 80 percent of their salary on a tax defemred basis. The
Bank may also make discretionary contributions to the Plan,
The Bank contributed $185 thousand, $171 thousand and
$125 thousand to the Plan in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The Bank does not currently provide any other
post retirement or post employment benefits to its
employees other than the 401ik) plan.

The Company has incentive and nonqualified option
plans, which allow for the grant of options to officers,
employees and members of the Board of Directors. In
addition, restricted stock is issued under the stock bonus
program to reward employees and directors and to retain
them by distributing stock over a period of time.

Stock Option Plans

The Company’s incentive and nongualified option plans,
generally vest over 3 years and must be exercised within 10
years of the date of the grant. The exercise price of each
option is the market price on the date of grant.

As of December 31, 2007, 1,448,123 shares have been
reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options, 730,058
option grants are outstanding, 544,510 option grants have
been exercised, forfeited or expired, leaving 173,555 shares
available for grant.

The Company granted 103,788, 30,713* and 8,545*
options in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The fair value
of the options granted during each period was estimated on
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes opticn pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions:

*Considers 5 percent dividend declared in 2007.
2007 2006 2005

Number of options granted 103,788 30,713 8545
Weighted average exercise price $10.98 $13.45 $10.68
Welghted average

falr value of options $322 $333 §239
Expected life (years) 5.15 407 419
Expected volatility I334% 266% 235%
Risk-free Interest rate ANy 431%  3.99%
Dividend vield 192% 1.34% 1.36%




The expected life of the options was estimated based on
historical employee behavior and represents the period of
time that options granted are expected to be outstanding,
Expected volatility of the Company’s stock price was based
on the historical volatility over the period commensurate
with the expected [ife of the options. The risk-free interest

rate is the U.S. Treasury rate commensurate with the
expected life of the options on the date of grant. The
expected dividend vield is the projected annual yield based
on the grant date stock price.

Transactions under the Company’s stock options plans
for the last three years are summarized as follows:

Weighted  Weighted Average

Average Remaining  Aggregate

Number of Exercise Price Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Shares per Share Price Life (in years) Value

Qutstanding at December 34, 2004 973,927 $220-1204 § 546 72 § 5,456,765
Options Granted 8,545 10.37 -11.31 10.68
Options Exercised (171,046} 2.20-10.32 503
Options Expired {19,509 5.30 - 10.41 860

Qutstanding at December 31, 2005 791,917 $220-12.04 $ 553 6.2 $5,673.323
Options Granted 30,713 12.70-14.71 13.45
Options Exercised {51,659 284- 930 5.89
Options Expired (4,325) 877-11.31 10.64

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 766,646 52.20-14.71 $ 580 5.3 $ 6,305,517
Options Granted 103,788 7.46-13.25 10.98
Options Exercised {128,811) 2.20- 930 4.86
Options Expired {11,535) 10.79 -13.25 1257

Qutstanding at December 31, 2007 730,058 $281-14M $ 659 52 $1,981,939

Exercisable at December 31, 2007 612,528 $2.84-14.M $ 5.69 44 $ 1,940,339

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2007:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average

Range of Remaining Weighted Weighted
Exercise Options Contractual Life Average Shares Average
Prices Qutstanding {in years) Exercise Price Brercisable  Exercise Price
5 0.00- 400 274,795 34 S 320 274,795 5 320
401 - 8.00 198,861 57 5.86 158,861 5.46
8.01 - 12.00 168,056 57 948 165,601 947
12.01 - 16.00 88,346 88 13.28 13,271 12.99
730,058 5.2 4 659 612,528 $ 569

Compensation expense related to stock options totaled
$112 thousand, $25 thousand and $0 in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively, As of December 31, 2007, there was
approximately $280 thousand of unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the Company’s
stock incentive plans. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.3 years.

The total intrinsic value (spread between the market

value and exercise price) of the stock options exercised
during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was §835 thousand, $398
thousand and $1.04 million, respectively.

Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted stock awards vest over a period of 4 years
and are recognized as compensation to the employees
over the vesting period. Restricted stock awards granted
during the past three years include:




Grant Year Shares Average Grant Date Fair Value
2007 18,613 $13.17
2006 11,805 $13.59
2005 21,230 §12.33

Expense related to the restricted stock awards totaled
$180 thousand, $112 thousand and $49 thousand for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2007,

Transactions under the Company's restricted stock award plans during the last three years include:

there was approximately $385 thousand of unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock
awards granted under the Company's stock incentive plans.
That ¢ost i5 expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 1.4 years.
As of December 31, 2007, 115,763 shares of restricted
stock were reserved for issuance, of which 53,258 shares
are gutstanding, 1,337 shares were issued and 61,968
shares are available for grant.

Weighted Average
Number of Exercise Price Weighted Average  Remaining Contractual
Shares per Share Exercise Price Life {in years)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2004 6,948 $11.13-11.13 $11.43 10.0
Cranted 21,230 12.33-12.33 12.33
tssued - - -
Canceled - - -
Qutstanding at December 31, 2005 28178 $11.13-12.33 $12.04 98
Granted 14,805 13.25-14.71 13.59
lssued - - -
Canceled 2,510 11,33 -12.33 42.06
Outstanding at December 34, 2006 37473 $1113-14.M $ 1253 88
Granted 18613 11.63 -13.52 1317
Issued (1,33n 11.13-13.45 12.04
Canceled (149 11.13 - 13.45 11.94
Qutstanding at December 31, 2007 53,258 $11.13-14.1 $12.78 83
Exercisable at December 21, 2007 10 $11.13-14.M1 $12.23 7

The following table summarizes nonvested restricted stock activity for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007:

Shares Average Grant Date Fair Value
Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2006 34,000 $12.67
Granted 18,613 13.47
Vested (9,626) 12.59
Forfeited (500} 11.66
Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2007 42,487 $12.92

21. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value estimates for financial instruments are
made at a discrete point in time based upon relevant
market information and information about the undertying
instruments.

Because no market exists for 3 portion of the
Company’s financial instruments, fair value estimates are
based on judgment regarding a number of factors. These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve some
uncertainties. Changes in assumptions and methodologies
may have a material effect on these estimated fair values.
In addition, reasonable comparability between financial

institutions may not be likely due to a wide range of
permitted valuation techniques and numerous estimates,
which must be made. This lack of uniform valuation
methodologies also introduces a greater degree of
subjectivity to these estimated fair values.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the Fair value of each dass of financial instruments
for which it is practicable to estimate that value,

Cash and Federal Funds Soid -
For these short-term instruments, the cammying value is

a reasonable estimate of fair value.




Securities -

For the held to maturity and avallable for sale
portfolios, falr values are based on quoted market prices or
dealer quotes. If a quoted market price is not avaitable, fair
value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar
securities.

Loans -

The Ffair value of loans is estimated by discounting the
future cash flows using current market rates that reflect
the credit, collateral and interest rate risk inherent in the
loan.

FHLB Stock -
FHLB stock is carried at cost.

SBA Servicing Rights -

The fair value of servicing rights is determined using a
discount rate of 15 percent, constant prepayment rate
speeds ranging from 15 to 18, and interest strip multip'es
ranging from 2.85 to 3.25, depending on each individual
credit.

Deposit Liabilities -

The fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts
Is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date.
The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is

estimated by discounting the future cash flows using
current market rates.

Borrowings and Subordinated Debentures -

The fair value of barrowings and subordinated
debentures is estimated by discounting the projected
future cash flows using current market rates.

Accrued Interest -
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate
fair value.

unrecognized Financial instruments -

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had standby letters of
credit outstanding of $3.9 million, as compared to $1.6
million at December 31, 2006. The fair value of these
commitments is nominal,

Interest Rate Swap Agreements -

Fafr values for interest rate swap agreements are
based upcn the amounts required to settie the contracts.
At December 31, 2007, the Company had one interest rate
swap agreement with a notional amount of $10.0 million
and an unrealized loss relating to the swap of $23
thousand. No interest rate swap agreements existed at
December 31, 2006,

Below are the Company's estimated finandial instruments fair values as of December 34, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006

Carrying  Estimated Carrying  Estimated
{In thousands) Amount  Fair Value Amount  Fair Value
Financlal assets -
Cash and federal funds sold $ 36312 § 36312 § 55436  § 55436
Securities held to maturity 33,736 33,639 42,815 42,449
Securities available for sale 64,855 64,855 62,642 62,642
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 581,749 581,502 500,066 498,022
Accrued interest receivable 3,994 3,994 3,926 3.926
FHLB stock 4,395 4,395 2,953 2,953
SBA servicing assets 2,056 2,056 2,294 2,294
Financial liabilities -
Total deposits 601,268 589,607 566,465 546,009
Total borrowings and subordinated debentures 100,465 101,898 79,744 79,156
Accrued interest payable 635 635 475 475




22. Condensed Financial Statements of

Statements of Income

December 31,

Unity Bancorp, Inc. fin thousands} 2007 2006 2005
(Parent Company Only) Interest income $1321 § 859 § 505
Balance Sheets December 31, Interest expense 1,720 1,206 678
{In thousands) 2007 2006 Net interest expense 403) (347) 173
Assets: Net security gains 2 69 53
Cash $ 433  $ 687 Total expense (381} (278  {120)
Securities avallable for sale 26 270  Other expenses 39 43 58
Capltal note due from Bank 8.500 14.500 Loss before income tax
Investment in subsidiaries 53,356 48,892 benefit and equ|tv in
Other assets 469 81 undistributed income
Total Assets _ $62,984  $71,345 of subsidiary @ 321 (178
Liabiities and Shareholders’ EQUItY: Incame tax benefit nas___ 113 03
Other liabilities § 259 § 373 Loss before equity in
Other borrowings 15,865 24,744 undistributed income
Shareholders’ Equity 47,260 46,228 of sm;bsidigrv (27 (208 {103
— Equity In undistributed net
Tota! Liabilities and .
Net income $4725 $5.845 $6210
Statements of Cash Flows December 31,
{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Operating Activities:
Net Income $ 4725 $ 5.845 $ 6,210
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Equity in undistributed eamings of subsidiary {5,002} (6.053) {6,313
Gain on sale of securities avaitable for sale 22 (69 53
Decrease {increase) in other assets 62 (49} Y |
{Decrease) increase in other llabllities a1 23 2
Net cash used in operating activities {658) {303} 103
investing Activities:
Sales and maturities of securities available for sale 108 252 148
Purchases of securities available for sale {59) - {136)
Dividend from Bank 1,000 - -
Repayment (advance) of Capital Note to Bank 6,000 {8.500) -
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities 7,049 {8,248} 12
Financing Activities:
(Redemption} issuance of subordinated debentures (9,000) 15,000 -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 1,119 781 853
Purchase common stock, net 3,927 - 242)
Cash dividends on common stock 1,022 (1,291) (1,079
Net Cash (used in} provided by financing activities {12,830 14,490 (468)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {6,439 5,939 {559)
Cash, beginning of year 6872 933 1,492
Lash, end-of -year $ 433 $ 6,872 $ 933
Supplemental disclgsures: Interest pald $ 1,600 § 1179 S 667




23. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
{in thousands)

Net unrealized security gains llosses) Pre-tax Tax After-tax
Balance at anuary 41, 2005 S 484
Unrealized holding loss on securities arising during the period {1.004) (382) {622}
Less: Redassification adjustment for gains included in net income 69 26 43
Net unrealized loss on securities arising during the period {1,073 (408) {665)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $01,149
Unrealized holding gains on segurities arising during the period 593 222 in
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income 69 23 46
Net unrealized gains on securities arising during tha period 524 199 325
8atance at December 31, 2006 S {824
Unrealized haolding gains on securities arising during the period 183 215 (32)
Less: Redlassification adjustment for gains included in net income (357 n (380
Net unrealized gains on securities arising during the period 540 192 348
Balance at December 31, 2007 S {476)
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges Pre-tax Tax After-tax
Balance at January 1, 2007 - - S -
Unrealized holding loss arising during the period (23 (9} (14)
Net unrealized loss on cash flow hedge (13)
Balance at December 34, 2007 S NMa




Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following quarterly financizl information for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 is unaudited, However, in
the opinion of management, all adiustrments, which include normal recurring 2djustments necessary to present Fairly the
results of operations for the periods, are reflected. Results of operations for the periods are not necessarily indicative of

the results of the entire year or any other interim perlod.

(In thousands, except per share data)

2007 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Total interest income $11,702 $11,975 $12,565 $12,657
Total interest expense 5,683 5,888 6,593 6,310
Net interest income 6,019 6,087 5,973 6,347
Provision for loan losses 200 350 450 550
Net interest income after provision for I0an losses 5819 5,737 5,523 5.797
Total noninterest income 1,679 1,748 1,450 1,053
Total noninterest expense 5417 5.267 55M 5,928
Net income before tax 2,081 2.8 1,482 4]
income tax provision 630 676 430 242
Net income 1,451 1,542 1,052 680
Basic income per common share $ 0N $ 0.22 $ 0.15 $ 010
Diluted income per common share $ 020 son $ 015 $ 010
(In thousands, except per share data)
2006 March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
Total interest income $10,000 $10,644 $14,258 $11,275
Total interest expense 3,947 4,611 5,314 5,560
Net interest income 6,053 6,033 5,944 5,715
Provision for {oan losses 300 250 400 600
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 5,753 5.783 5,544 5115
Total noninterest income 2.002 1.647 2,243 1,746
Total noninterest expense 5.256 5.001 5,316 5472
Net income before tax 2,498 2,429 2471 1,389
Income tax provision 842 792 844 465
Net income 1,657 1,637 1,627 924
Basic income per comman share $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 013
Diluted income per common share $ 023 $ 023 $ 022 $ 013




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED
FNANCIAL DATA

{in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Results of Operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Per Share Data
Net income per commen share (basic)
Net income per common share (diluted)
Book value per common share
Market value per common share
Cash dividends declared on common shares
Selected Balance Sheet Data
Total assets
Loans
Allowance for loan losses
Securities
Deposits
Borrowings
Shareholders’ equity
Common shares outstanding
Performance Ratios
Return On average assets
Return on average equity
Efficiency ratio
Net interest spread
Net interest margin
Asset Quality Ratios
Allowance for loan losses to loans

Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans

Nonperforming loans to totat loans

Nonperforming assets to total loans and OREQ

Net charge-offs to average loans
Capital Ratios - Company

Leverage ratio

Tier | risk-based capital ratio

Total risk-based capital ratio
Capital Ratios - Bank

Leverage ratio

Tier | risk-based capital ratio

Total risk-based capital ratio

At or For the Years Ended December 315t

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$48,900 943,177 $33.837 526,166  $24.895
24,474 19,432 11,603 7,008 7.028
23,426 25745 22,234 19,158 17,867

1,550 1,550 1,850 1175 1,600
5,940 7.638 8,190 7,629 8,345
22113 21,045 18,676 17.230 17.329
1978 2,943 3,688 3.052 2,698
4,725 5,845 6,210 5,330 4,583

$0.68 $0.85 $0.92 $0.80 $0.70
0.66 0.81 0.87 0.75 0.67
7.03 6.66 5.96 5.36 4.67
8.50 14.01 12.70 11.06 9.40
0.20 0.19 0.17 0.13 0.05
§752,196 $694,106 $614,172 $515417 $467.419
590,132 507,690 448567 373,580  339.755
8,583 7,624 6,892 5,856 5,352
98,591 105,457 104,160 100,357 91,279
601,268 566,465 521,860 433,898 414,982
100,465 79744 49,279 44,279 19.279
47,260 46228 40929 35,868 30.762

6,727 6,949 6,863 6,689 6,582

0.66% 0.90% 1.10% 1.10% 1.04%
101 13.56 16.29 16.32 16.05
.48 67.21 61.53 64.51 66.59

3.07 3.33 3.74 3.77 3.85
3.62 3.87 417 418 428
1.42% 1.50% 1.54% 1.57% 1.58%
15349 8558 15804 143.14 99.20
093 175 097 1.10 1.59
0.94 1.80 1.0 1.19 1.68
014 0.17 0.20 019 011
8.25% 9.08% 8.27% 9.09% 9.02%

.81 10.80 9.98 11.14 11.28
11.06 13.60 11.23 12.39 12.53

7.06% 7.20% 7.01% 7.55% 7.22%
8.39 8.55 8.31 9.22 9.05
11.00 12.58 10.97 11.95 11.98

All share amounts have been restated to include the effect of the 5% stock distributions paid on June 29, 2007, June 30, 2006, June 30, 2005,

June 30, 2004 and March 12, 2003.
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Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Shareholders are cordially invited to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
The Meeting will convene at 3:00 pm. Thursday, April 24, 2008, at

The Grand Colonial, Hampton, NJ.

Stock Listing
Unity Bancorp, Inc. common stock is traded on the NASDAQ under the
symbol “UNTY".

Common Stock Prices
The table below sets forth by quarter the range of high, low and
quarter-end clasing sale prices for Unity Bancorp, Inc’s common stock.

Cash
bividend

Quarter tigh Declared
2007
Fourth
Third

Second

$11.32 $0.05
11.76 0.05
12.00 0.05

First 14.54 ' 0.05

2006

Fourth $15.14 $0.05
Third 16.35 0.05
Second 16.78 0.05

First 5.4 | 0.04

| Numbers have been restated for 5% Stock Dividend |

As of March 1, 2008 there were 515 holders of Unity Bancorp, Inc.’s
common stock.
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UNITY BANCORP, INC.
64 Old Highway 11
Clinton, New Jersey 08809

March 21,2008

Dear Shareholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting of shareholders (the "Annual Meeting”) of
Unity Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company™) to be held on April 24,2008 at 3:00 pm. at the Grand Colonial
Restaurant, 86 Route 173 West, Perryville (Clinton), New Jersey. At the Annual Meeting, shareholders
will be asked to consider and vote upon:

1. The election of the four (4) nominees listed in the attached proxy statement to serve on
the Board of Directors for the terms set forth therein for each nominee;

2. Such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and at any
adjournments thereof, including whether or not to adjourn the Annual Meeting.

Space is limited for the Annual Meeting. If you plan on attending the Annual Meet ng, please mark the
appropriate box on the proxy card so we can reserve enough space to accommodate all attendees.

Your cooperation is appreciated since a majority of the outstanding shares of
Common $tock of the Company must be represented, either in person or by
proxy, to constitute a quorum for the conduct of business. Whether or not you
expect to attend, please sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card promptly

in the postage-paid envelope provided so that your shares of Company Common
Stock will be represented. In addition, please be kind enough to note on the proxy
card whether or not you Intend to be present at the Annual Meeting,

On behalf of the Board of Directars and all of the employees of the Company. | thank you for your
continued interest and support.

Sincerely yours,

DAVID D.DALLAS
Chairman of the Board




UNITY BANCORP, INC.
64 Old Highway 22
Clinton, New Jersey 08809

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD APRIL 24,2003

Notice is hereby given that the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the "Annual Meeting”) of
Unity Bancorp. Inc., {the “Company™), will be held at the Grand Colonial Restaurant, 86 Route 173
West, Perryville (Clinton), New Jersey, on April 24, 2008 at 3.00 p.m. for the purpose of considering
and voting upon the following matters:

|. The election of directors to serve as direciors of the Company for the termsset
forth in the accompanying proxy statement;

2. Such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and at any
adjournments thereof, including whether or not to adjourn the Annual Meeting.

Shareholders of record at the dlose of business on March 7, 2008, are entitled to notice of, and 1o
vote at, the Annual Meeting. If you plan on attending the Annual Meeting, please mark the
appropriate box on the proxy card so we can reserve enough space to accommodate all attendees.

All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. Whether or not you contemplate
attending the Annual Meeting, please execute the enclosed proxy and return it to the Company, You
may revoke your proxy at any time prior to the exercise of the proxy by delivering to the Comparny a
later-dated proxy or by delivering a written notice of revocation to the Company. A return envelope,
which does not require postage, if maited in the United States, is endosed for your convenience,

By Order of the Board of Directors

DAVID D. DALLAS

Chairman of the Board

March 21,2008
Clinton, New jersey




UNITY BANCORP, INC.
64 Old Highway 12
Clinton, New Jersey 08809

PROXY STATEMENT
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD APRIL 14, 2008

We are providing these proxy materials in connection with the selicitation by the Board of Directors
of Unity Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company”) of proxies to be voted at the Company’s 2008 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders (the “Annual Meeting”) 1o be held on April 24,2008, and at any
postponement or adiournment of the Annual Meeting.

You are cordially invited 1o attend the Annual Meeting, which will begin at 3:00 pm. local time. The
Annual Meeting will be held at the Grand Colonia! Restaurant, 86 Route 173 West, Perryville
(Climon). New Jersey. Shareholders will be admitied beginning at 245 p.m. local time, (Directions:
Route 78 West to Bxit 12 to end of ramp, turn left onto Route 173 West and proceed to restaurant
on right; or Route 78 East to Exit | | to end of ramp, tun left on Route 614, tum right onto Route
173 East and proceed to restaurant.)

The Company is first mailing this proxy statement and proxy card (including voting instructions) on or
about March 21,2008, to persons who were Unity Bancorp, Inc. shareholders at the close of business
on March 7,2008, the record date for the Annual Meeting.

PROXIES AND YOTING PROCEDURES
Who CanVote?

You are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting all shares of the Company's common stock. no par
value per share (the “Common Stock™), that you held as of the close of business on the record date.
Each share of Common Stock is entitled to one vote with respect to each matter property brought
before the Annual Meeting,

On March 7, 2008, there were 6,748,683 shares of Common Stock outstanding.

In accordance with New Jersey law, 2 list of shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting will be
available at the Annual Meeting,

Who ls the Record Holder?

You may own Common Stock either (1) directly in your name, in which case you are the record
holder of such shares, or (2) indirectly through a broker, bank or other nominee, in which case such
nominee is the record holder.

I your shares of Commeon Stock are registered directly in your name, the Comgany is sending these
proxy materials directly to you. If the record holder of your shares of Common Stock is a nominee,
you will receive proxy materials from such record helder.




How Do [Vote?
Record Holders:

+ By Mail. If you choose 1o vote by miail, mark your proxy, date and sign it, and return it in the
postage-paid envelope provided. Your vote by maif must be received by the close of voting at the
Annual Meeting on April 24. 2008.

* By Attending the Annual Meeting. If you attend the Annual Meeting, you can vote your shares of
Common Stock in person.

Stock Held by Brokers, Banks and Nominees;

If your Commeon Stock is held by a broker, bank or other nominee, you will receive instructions from
them that you must follow in order to have your shares voted.

If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person, you will need to contact the broker,
bank or other nominee to obtain evidence of your ownership of Common Stock on March 7, 2008,

The methad by which you vote will in no way limit your right to vote at the Annual Meeting il you
later decide to attend in person.

How Many Votes Are Required?

A quorum is required to transact business at the Annual Meeting. The Company will have a quorum
and be able to conduct the business of the Annual Meeting if the holders of a majority of the shares
of Common Stock entitled to vote are present at the Annual Meeting, either in person or by proxy.

If a quorum is present, Directors will be elected by a plurality of votes cast at the Annual Meeting.
Thus, a Director may be elected even if the Director receives less than a majority of the shares of
Common Stock represented at the Annual Meeting,

How Are Votes Counted?

All shares that have been properly voted, and not revoked, will be voted at the Annual Meeting in
accordance with the instructions given. If you sign and return your proxy card, but do not specify
how you wish your shares to be voted, your shares represented by that proxy will be voted "for” the
nominees for Director, and as recommended by the Board of Directors on any other business to be
conducted at the Annual Meeting. The Board is not aware of any other business to be conducted at
the Annual Meeting,

Proxies marked as abstaining, and any proxies retumed by brokers as “non-votes™ on behalf of shares
held in street name because beneficial owners' discretion has been withheld as 1o one or more
matters o be acted upon at the Annual Meeting, will be treated as present for purposes of
determining whether a quorum is present at the Annual Meeting. However, any shares not voted as a
result of a marked abstention or a broker non-vote will not be counted as votes for or 2gainst a
particular matter. Accordingly, marked abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the
outcome of a vole,




How Can | Revoke My Proxy or Change My Vote?

You can revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by timely delivery of a properly
executed, later-dated proxy or by voting in person at the Annual Meeting,

Who Will Pay the Expenses of Proxy Distribution?

The Company will pay the expenses of the preparation of the proxy matenials and the solicitation of
proxies. Proxies may be solicited on behalf of the Company by Directors, officers or employees of
the Company. who will receive no additional compensation for soliciting, in person or by telephone, e-
mail or facsimile or other electronic means. In accordance with the regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the National Association of Securities Dealers. Inc. ("NASD"). the
Company will reimburse brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for their
expenses incurred in sending proxies and proxy materials to beneficial owners of Common Stock

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Cempany, the Board of
Directors shall consist of not less than one (1) and not more than fifieen (15) Directors. The Board
of Directors of the Company currently has nine (3) members. The Board of Directors is divided into
three classes. One class is elected each year for a term of three years.

Four (4) Directors will be elected at this Annual Meeting to serve for a three-year term expiring at
the Company’s Annual Meeting in 201 {. The Board has nominated Wayne Courtright, David D.
Dallas, Robert H. Dallas, Il and Peter E. Maricondo to fill these positions. Each of the nominees is a
current member of the Company’s Board of Directors,

The following tables set forth, as of the record date. the names of the nominees and the names of
those directors whose terms continue beyond the Annual Meeting and their ages. a brief description
of their recent business experience, including present occupations and employment, certain
directorships held by each, the year in which each became a director of the Company and the yearin
which their terms (or in the case of the nominees, their proposed terms} as director of the Company
expire.

The persons named in the enclosed proxy card will vote such proxy “for” the election of each of the
nominees named above unless you indicate that your vote should be withheld. If elected, each
nominee will continue in office until his successor has been duly elected and qualified, or until the
earliest of his death, resignation, retirement or removal. Each of the nominees has indicated to the
Company that he or she will serve if elected. The Company does not anticipate that any of the
nominees will be unable to stand for election, but if that happens, your proxy will be voted in favor of
another person nominated by the Board.

The Board of Directors has nominated and recommends a vote FOR the election of Wayne
Courtright, David O, Dallas, Robert H. Dallas, Il and Peter E. Maricondo.




Table | — Nominees for 2008 Annual Meeting

Director

Name,Age and Position Principal Occupation During Director | Term
with Company(" Past Five Years Since® Expires
Wayne Courtright, 60 Retired, Former Banker 2004 2011
Director
David O. Dallas &, 53 Chairman of the Company and the 1950 2011
Chairman Bank; Chief Executive Officer of Dallas

Group of America, Inc. {Chemicals)
Robert H. Dallas, I}, ® 6 President of Dallas Group of America, | 1990 2011
Director Inc. (Chemicals)
Peter E. Mancondo, 61 Financial Consultant 2004 2001

Table Il - Directors of the Company Whose Terms Continue

Beyond this Annual Meeting

Name, Age and Position Principal Occupation During Director | Term
with Company(" Past Five Years Since® | Expires
Frank AR, 75 Entrepreneur and Real Estate 2002 2009
Director Developer
Dr. Mark 5. Brody, 55 V.P. Planned Financial Programs, Inc.. | 2002 2009
Director Proprietor of Financial

Planning Analysts;

NY State Licensed Physician
Charles $. Loring, 66 Owner, Charles S. Loring, 1990 2009
Director Certified Public Accountant
James A, Hughes, 49 President and CEQ of the 2002 2010
President, CEQ Company and the Bank
ang Director
Allen Tucker, 81 President, Tucker Enterprises 1995 2010
Vice Chairman Real Estate Builder and investor

(1) Each director of the Company is also a director of the Bank
{2) Includes prior service on the Board of Directors of the Bank.
(3) David D. Dallas and Robert H. Dallas, Il, are brothers.

(4) No Director of the Company is alsa a Director of any other company registered pursuant to
Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or any company registered as an investment
company under the Investment Company Act of 1940.




GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY
Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committee Meetings

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company held twelve
(12) meetings. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, no director attended fewer than
75% of the aggregate of (i) the meetings of the Board of Directors, and (ii) meetings of the
Committees of the Board of Directors on which such director served. The Board of Direciors has
determined that each of the following Directors of the Company is “independent.” for Audit
Committee purposes, within the meaning of the NASDAQ's listing standards: Frank Ali, Dr. Mark 5.
Brody, Wayne Courtright, Peter E. Maricondo, Charles S. Loring and Allen Tucker. constituting a
majority of the Board. In reviewing the independence of these directors, the Board considered that
Messrs. Al, Brody, Loring and Tucker engaged in ordinary course banking transactions with the Bank,
including loans that were made in accordance with Federal Reserve Regulation Q. The Company’s
policy is to require all Directors 10 attend annual meetings of shareholders absent extenuating
dircumstances. Al of the Company’s Directors attended the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders.

Audit Committee

The Company maintains an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which consisted of Chairman
Peter E. Maricondo, and Directors Mark S. Brody, Wayne Courtright and Charles $. Loring, during the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. The Audit Committee met five (5) times in 2007, and also held
three (3) telephone conference calls with its external auditors in 2007. Al Directors who serve on
the Audit Committee are “independent’” under the heightened NASDAQ listing standards and
Securities and Exchange Commissions rules applicable to audit committees. The Board has
detervnined that Messrs. Maricondo, Loring and Brody are considered “audit committee financial
experts” as defined in tem 401 (h) of Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors to assist the Board in fulfiling its
oversight responsibilities. The Board has adopted a written charter setting forth the functions of the
Audit Committee. The functions of the Audit Committee are to: () monitor the integrity of the
Company's financial reporting process and systems of internal controls; (i) monitor the independence
and performance of the Company's external audit and intemal auditing functions; (iii} provide avenues
of communication among the external and internal auditors and the Board of Directors; {iv) review
and monitor compliance with the Company's Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) policy procedures and
practices; and (v) review and manitor compliance with the Company's policies, procedures and
practices. The Audit Committee reviews this charter annually in order to assure compliance with
current SEC and NASDAQ rulemaking and to assure that the Audit Committee’s functions and
procedures are appropriately defined and implemented. A copy of our Audit Committee charter is

available on our website at wwyw.unitybank.com.

The Audit Committee also reviews and evaluates the recommendations of the Company’s
independent certified public accountant, receives ali reports of examination of the Company and the
Bank by regulatory agencies, analyzes such regulatory reports and informs the Board of the results of
their analysis of the regutatory reports. In addition, the Audit Committee receives reports directly
from the Company's internal auditors and recommends any action to be taken in connection
therewith,




H nsatio ittee

The H/R Compensation Committee consisted of Chairman Mark S, Brody and Directors Frank Ali
and Peter €. Maricondo during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. The H/R Compensation
Commitiee mat two {2) trmes in 2007 As of the date hereof, all Diretiors who serve on the HIR
Compensation Committee are “independent” for purposes of NASDAQ listing standards,

The H/R Compensation Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors to assist the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities with respect to human resaurces issues, policies relating to human
resources and compensation of employees, including executive compensation, The H/R
Compensation Committee performs functions that inchude menitoring human resources and
compensation issues and practices, both internally and in the marketplace, conducting surveys and
studies as to these issues, keeping abreast of current developments in the relevant fields, developing
compensation ranges/grades, human resources palicies and employment manual updates, Based on
the results of its activities, the H/R Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board
as to matters of compensation and human resources. The H/R Compensation Committee does not
delegate its authority regarding compensation. Currently, no consuttants are engaged or used by the
Compensation Committee for purposes of determining or recermmending compensation. In 2007,
the H/R Compensation Committee met two (2) times. The H/R Compensation Committee is not
authorized to make final decisions as to these matters; rather, the Board of Directors makes all final
determinations regarding compensation and human resources matters and takes into account, but is
ot required to follow, the recommendations of the HIR Compensation Committee. All decisions
regarding compensation of executive officers of the Company are made by a majority of independent
Directors in accordance with NASDAQ listing standards. The Board of Directors has adopted 2
written charter for the H/R Compensation Committee which is available on our website at

www.unitybankcom

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
No members of the Compensation Committee are or were officers or employees of the Company.

The Company does not maintain a separate Nominating Corarnittee. The full Board of Directors,
which is comprised of a majority of independent directors within the meaning of the NASDAQ listing
standards, performs the functions and fulfils the role of a nominating committee. |n accordance with
NASDAQ listing standards, each nominee selected by the Board must be approved by a majority of
the independent Directors. The Company does not believe that a nominating committee is needed
in light of the foregoing approval requirement and the fact that the Board consists largely of
independent Directors. Although the Board has not adopted a formal written charter relating to its
nominating procedures, & has adopted a resolution regarding the narmination process, The Board of
Directors carefully considers all director candidates recommended by the Company's stackholders,
and the Board does not and will not evaluate such candidate recommendations any differently from
the way it evaluates other candidates. In its evaluation of each proposed candidate. the Board
considers many factors including, without limitation, the individual's experience, character,
demanstrations of judgment and ability, and financial and other speciat expertise. The Board is also
authorized 1o obtain the assistance of an independent third party to complete the process of finding.
evaluating and selecting suitable candidates for director. Candidates must be at least 30 years old.
Any shareholder who wishes to recommend an mdividual as a nominee for election to the Board of
Directors should submit such recommendation in writing to the Corporate Secretary of the
Company, together with information regarding the experience, education and general background of
the individual and a statement as to why the shareholder believes such individual to be an appropriate
candidate for Director of the Comparny. Such recommendation should be provided to the Company
no later than the deadline for submission of shareholder proposals with respect to the annual
meeting at which such candidate, if nominated by the Board, would be proposed for election.
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The Company ercourages shareholder communications with the Board of Directors, but does not
have a formal process. All such communications should be directed to the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, who will circulate them to the other members of the Board. The Board does not
screen shareholder communications through management.

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics in accordance with SEC regulations, applicable to the
Company's Chief Executive Officer; Chief Operating Ofiicer, senior financial officers and the Board of
Directors. Our Code of ethics is available on our website at wwwiunitybank.com

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year eaded December 31,
2007, was McGladrey & Pullen, LLP Representatives of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP are expected to be
present at the Annual Meeting and will have an opportunity to make a statement. if they desire to do
s0, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Fees Paid to the Company's Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm during
Fiscal Years 2006 and 2007,

Audit Fees

The Company was billed the aggregate amount of $128,000 for fiscal year ended December 31,2007,
for professional services rendered by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP (or its audit of the Company’s Financial
Statements for 2007 and review of the financial statemnents incfuded in the Company’s Forms 10-Q
during 2007.

The Company was billed the aggregate amount of $165,000 for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006,
for professional services rendered by KPMG LLP for its audit of the Company's consolidated Financial
Statements for 2006 and review of the consolidated financial statements included in the Company's
Forms 10-Q during 2006,

All Other Fees

In addition 10 the fees set forth above under Audit Fees, the Company was billed $18.000 for
professional services related to the Audit of the Company’s 401K Plan in fiscal year 2007. The Audit
Committee has considered whether the provision of these services is compatible with maintaining the
indepandence of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

In addition to the fees set forth above under Audit Fees, the Company was billed $30,000 for
professional services related 10 the Audit of the Company’s 401K Plan and $5,500 for issuance of
consents in fiscal year 2006. The Audit Committee has considered whether the prowision of these
services is compatible with maintaining the independence of KPMG LLP




. i issible Non-Audit Servi

The Audit Committee generally pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by
the independent auditors, These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax
services and other services. The Audit Committee has adopted a policy for the pre-approval of
services provided by the independent auditors. Under the policy, pre-approval is generally provided
for up to ane year, and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services
and is subject to a specific budget For each proposed service, the independent auditor is required to
provide detailed back-up documentation at the time of approval. The Audit Committee has approved
an exceplion to this pre-approval policy. allowing management to engage the Company's independent
auditor to provide permissible non-audit services, provided that the total cost of such services, in the
aggregate, does not exceed $10,000 in any year. Management will then report the engagement to
the Audit Committee at its next meeting. All audit and permissible non-audit services provided by
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP to the Company for the fiscal years ended 2007 and by KPMG LLP for 2006
were approved by the Audit Committee.

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets at least four times per year to consider the adequacy of the Company's
financial controls and the objectivity of its financial reporting, The Audit Committee meets with the
Company's independent registered public accounting firm and the Company's internal auditors, who
have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

Management of the Company has primary responsibility for the Company’s financial statements and
the overall reporting process, including the Company's system of internal controls. The independent
registered public accounting firm audits the financial statements prepared by management, expresses
an opinion as to whether those financial statements fairly represent the financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows of the Company in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and discusses with the Audit Committee any issues they believe should be raised with the
Committee.

In connection with this year's {inancial statements, the Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed
the Comparny’s audited financial statements with the Company's officers and McGladrey & Pullen, LLP,
the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Commitiee has discussed
with McGladrey & Pullen, LLE the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees). The Audit Committee also received the
written disclosures and letters from McGladrey & Pullen, LLF, that are required by Independence
Standards Board Standard No. | (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees) and have
discussed such independence with representatives of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Based on these reviews and discussions, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of
Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, for filing with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission,

Peter €. Maricondo. Chairman
Dr: Mark 5. Brody

Wayne Courtright

Charles 3.Loring
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] SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL

II OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
The following tables set forth, as of February 29, 2008, certain information concerning the ownership
of shares of Common Stock by (i) each person who is known by the Company to own beneficiaity
mare tf}an five percent (5%} of the issued and outstanding Commen Stock, {ii) each director and
nomineg for director of the Company, (iii) each named executive officer described in this Proxy
Statement under the caption “Executive Compensation,” and (iv) all Directors and Executive Officers
of the Company as a group.

) Table | — Nominees for 2008 Annual Meeting

Name and Position Number of Shares Percent
With Company" Beneficially Owned @ of Class
Frank Af, Director 52,6480 0.78%
Mark S. Brody, Director 458,082 6.77%
Wayte Courtright, Director 762919 1.13%
Davi? D. Dallas, Chairman 1042479 1531%
Robert H. Dallas, Il Director 986,267 1450%
Char;'les S. Loring, Director 255,953 376%
Peter E. Maricondo, Director 5,071 0.08%
Alles Tucker, Director 269,896119 396%
Alarf ). Bedner, Exec.VP and

Chi¢f Financial Officer . 2987940 044%
Micfsael F. Downes, Exec VP and

Chiel Lending Officer 101,67162 1.49%
Jamks A Hughes, President and

Difector 106,65301% 1.56%
Joh}w J- Kauchak, Exec. VP and

Chief Operating Officer 06,4720 1.56%
Dierom and Executive Officers of the

Company as a Group {12 persons) 271060709 37.19%
5% Shareholders:

Wellington Management Company, LLP 408,25509 598%
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The address for Wellington Management Company is 75 State Street, Boston, MA, 02109, The
address for all other listed persons is cfo Unity Bank, 64 Old Highway 22, Clinton, New Jersey,
08809.

Beneficially owned shares include shares over which the named person exercises either sole or
shared voting power or sole or shared investment power: [t also includes shares owned (i) by
a spouse, minor children or relatives sharing the same home, (ji) by entities owned or
controlled by the named person, and (iii} by other persons if the named person has the right
to acquire such shares within sixty (60) days by the exercise of any right or option. Unless
otherwise noted, all shares are owned of record and beneficially by the named person.

Includes 13,210 shares in Mr. Ali's own name and | 1,419 shares held jointly with his spouse.
Also includes 25,867 shares issuable upon the exercise of immediately exercisable options.
Alsc includes |,102 shares of Restricted Stock granted on Decemnber 30, 2005 and payable in
175 share increments over four (4) years commencing January 3, 2007; and 1,050 shares of
Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 262 share increments over four
(4) years commencing January 25, 2008.

Includes 18,897 shares held jointly with his spouse. Also includes 56,599 shares registered to
Financial Planning Analysts and owned by Or. Brody, | |5 shares in Mr. Brody's own name, 5,500
shares in an SEP-IRA account in his own name, and 354,538 shares held in a master account at
Financial Planning Analysts over which Dr. Brody has no voting authority, but has dispositive
power. Includes 20,281 shares issuable upon the exercise of immediately exercisable options.
Also includes 1,102 shares of Restricted Stock granted on December 30, 2005 and payable in
275 share increments over four (4) years commencing january 3, 2007; and 1,050 shares of
Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 262 share increments over four
{4) years commencing January 25, 2008,

Includes 70,949 shares in Mr. Courtright's own name and 3,190 shares issuable upon the
exercise of immediately exercisable options. Also includes {102 shares of Restricted Stack
granted on December 30, 2005 and payable in 275 share increments over four (4) years
commencing january 3. 2007; and 1,050 shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25,
2007, and payable in 262 share increments over four (4) years commencing January 25, 2008.

Includes 191,136 shares in Mr. Dallas' own name; 58,685 shares issuable upon the exercise of
immediately exercisable options. Also includes 9,190 shares held by Mr. Dallas’ son. Shares also
disclosed as beneficially owned by Mr. Dallas include 36,584 shares held by Trenton Liberty Ins.
Co. and 744,732 shares held by Dallas Financial Holdings, LLC. These shares are also disclosed
as beneficially owned by Mr. Robert H. Dallas Il. Also includes 1,102 shares of Restricted Stack
granted on December 30, 2005 and payable in 275 share increments over four (4) years
commencing January 3,2007; and 1,050 shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25,
2007. and payable in 262 share incremenits over four (4) years commencing January 25. 2008.

Includes 144,675 shares in Mr. Dallas’ own name; and 58,685 shares issuable upon the exercise
of immediately exercisable options. Shares also disclosed as beneficially owned by Mr. Dallas
incude 36,584 shares held by Trenton Liberty Ins. Co., and 744,732 shares held by Dallas
Financial Holdings, LLC. These shares are also disclosed as beneficially owned by David D.
Dallas. Also includes 1,102 shares of Restricted Stock granted on December 30, 2005 and
payable in 275 share increments over four (4) years commengcing January 3, 2007; and 1.050
shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 262 share incremenms
over four (4) years commencing January 25, 2008,
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tcludes 135,715 shares in Mr. Loring's own name: 16,458 shares held by Mr. Lorings spouse in
her name; 27,566 shares owned jointly with his spouse; and 13, 375 shares held by The Loring
Partnershtp Also includes 58,687 shares issuable upon the exercise of immediately exercisable
gptions. Mr. Loring disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by his spouse in her own
e. Also includes 1.102 shares of Restricted Stock granted on December 30, 2005 and

payable in 275 share increments over four {4) years commencing January 3,2007; and 1,050
shares of Restricted Stock grarmed on January 25, 2007, and payable in 162 share increments
clwer four (4) years commencing January 25, 2008

thcludes |16 shares in Mr. Maricondo's own name and 2,803 shares issuable upon the exercise
of immediately exercisable options. Also includes 1,102 shares of Restricted Stock gmnted on
Decermber 30, 2005 and payable in 275 share increments over four (4) years commencing
January 3,2007: and 1,050 shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable
in 262 share increments over four (4) years commencing January 25, 2008.

1nc|udes 169,116 shares in Mr.Tucker's own name; 58,685 shares issuable upon the exercise of
|mmed|atety exercisable options; 39,943 shares held by Mr.Tucker's spouse in her own name.
Mr. Tucker disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by his spouse in her own name,
Also includes 1,102 shares of Restricted Stock granted on December 30, 2005 and payable in
275 share increments over four (4) years commencing January 3,2007; and 1,050 shares of
Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 262 share increments over four
(4) years commencing January 25,2008

ncludes 1,940 shares in Mr. Bedner's own name and 21,802 shares issuable upon the exertise
of immediately exertisable options. Also includes 1,157 shares of Restricted Stock granted on
December 23, 2004 and payable in 289 share increments over four (4) years commencing
December 23,2005, Also includes 1,930 shares of Restricted Stock granted on December 30,
2005 and payable in 482 share increments over four (4) years commencing January 3, 2007;
and 1,050 shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 262 share
increments over four (4) years commencing January 25, 2008; and 2,000 shares of Restricted
Stock granted 2/29/2008, and payable in 500 share increments over four (4) years

i :

commencing 2/28/2009.

|

Includes 9975 shares in Mr. Downes’ own name. Also includes 1,157 shares of Restricted
'Stock granted on December 23, 2004 and payable in 289 share increments over four (4) years
commencing December 23, 2005; and 1,930 shares of Restricted Stock granted on December
130, 2005 and payable in 482 share increments over four (4) years commeriing January 3,2007;
‘and 1,050 shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 262 share
|mcrements over four (4) years commencing January 25, 2008; and 2,000 shares of Restricted
’Stock gr'amed 22972008, and payable in 500 share increments over four (4) years
commencing 2/28/2009. Also includes 301 shares owned jointly with Mr. Downes’ spouse; and
185,258 shares issuable upon the exercise of immediately exercisable options.

|
i
|
|




(13)

(19)

(15)
(16)

Indudes 24,669 shares in Mr. Hughes' own name. Also includes 1,157 shares of Restricted
Stock granted on December 23, 2004 and payable in 289 share increments over four (4} years
commencing December 23, 2005; and 2,756 shares of Restricted Stock issued on December
30, 2005 and payable in 689 share increments over four (4) years commencing january 3, 2007,
and 3,150 shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 787 share
increments over four (4) years commencing January 25, 2008; and 2,000 shares of Restricted
Stock granted 2/29/2008. and payable in 500 share increments over four (4) years
commencing 2/28/2009. Also includes 72.921 shares issuable upon the exercise of
immediately exercisable options.

Includes 26,774 shares in Mr. Kauchak's own name. Also includes 1,157 shares of Restricted
Stock granted on December 23, 2004 and payable in 289 share increments aver four (4) years
commencing December 23, 2005; and 1,930 shares of Restricted Stock issued on December
30,2005 and payable in 483 share increments over four {4) years commencing January 3, 2007;
and 1,050 shares of Restricted Stock granted on January 25, 2007, and payable in 262 share
increments over four {4) years commendng January 25, 2008: and 2,000 shares of Restricted
Stock granted 2/2%/2008, and payable in 500 share increments over four (4) years
commencing 2/28/2009. Also includes 73,56} shares issuable upon the exercise of
immediately exercisable options.

Includes 540,425 shares issuable upon the exercise of immediately exercisable options,
Al information regarding the number of shares beneficially owned and the percent of

ownership by Wellington Management Company, LLF, was obtained from the Schedule 13-G/A
filed with the US, Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2008,

None of the shares disclosed on the table above are pledged as security




i
| EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The follosvmg table sets forth compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the three other
most hlghiy compensated executive officers of the Company earning in excess of $100.000 {the
“named execmwe officers") as of the fiscal year ended December 31,2007 and December 31, 2006.

Name and Vear | Salary |Bonus| Stock |Option| MNen-equity | All Other | Total
Principal %) (5) |Awards|Awards|Incentive Plan|Compensation| ($)
Posltion %) {$) |Compensation (5
james A Hughes
Pres/CEQ 2007)223,180 -0- {11537 -0- 37383 2,085 281,185
Alan ].:Bedner
EVPICFO 20071139641 -O- 8737 -0 24437 4,274 177,089
Micha?'I F. Downes
EVPICLO 20071176,748) 0- | 87377 -0- 26954 7983 220422
fohn ;Kauchak
EVPICDO 20071137696 O- | 8737 -O- 23064 5252 174,749
f
!
Name and Year | Salary [Bonus| Stock [Option| MNon-equity | All Other | Total
Prindpal (%) ($) |Awards|Awards|incentive Plan|Compensation] ($)
Positlon (4] (3) |Compensation 3
]arnes__'A Hughes
Pres/CEC 2006(196999] 0- | 3946 | -0 40,154 7.678 248774
Alan j Bedner
EVPICFO 2006(124,205| -0- | 3946 | -0- 38,044 4985 171,180
Michael F. Downes
EVP/'CLO 2006)16806) 0- | 3946 | O- 30510 9832 212349
Johnly, Kauchak
EVP{CDO 20061132,204] -0- | 3946 | -0- 25984 5295 167,429

The ({ompany and the Bank entered into a First Amendment to Employment Agreement with Mr.
Hughes on May 26, 2005, revising the March 23, 2004, Employment Agreement with Mr. Hughes with
respect to his services as President of the Company and the Bank. Under this First Amendment to
Ernployment Agreement, Mr. Hughes will receive an annual base salary of $!185,000, subject to annual
review and. in the discretion of the Board of Directors, adjustment based on factors deemed
appropnate by the Board. Mr. Hughes may also receive such additional cash bonuses as the Board of
Diredtors may authorize in its discretion, Mr. Hughes is entitled to participate in such benefft
programs as are made available to employees of the Company, and to participate in such stock option
or sl?ck bonus plans as the Board of Directors may, in its discretion, determine. Mr. Hughes’
agreement contains provisions for the payment of severance and payments upon a change in control.
See Potential Payments upon Termination of Change-in-Control.”
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Potential Payments upon Termination of Change-in-Control

Mr. Hughes' employment may be terminated at any time for “"cause” as defined in the Employment
Agreement, or without “cause.” In the event that Mr. Hughes is terminated without “cause” or resigns
for “goog cause™ (as defined under the Employment Agreement and discussed below), he is entitled
to receive a severance amount equal to 18 months of his then current base safary. Such amount shall
be paid ip one lump sum payment (within 30 days of the termination of Mr. Hughes' employment).
Mr: Hughes will also continue to receive medical, life insurance and other benefits to which he had
been entitled at the date of termination for such 18-month period, unless and until Mr. Hughes
obtaing riew employment during such period and such new employment provides for such benefits to
be proviged 10 Mr: Hughes. "Good Cause” under the Employment Agreement includes a material
reduction in Mr. Hughes duties and responsibilities or any reduction in his base salary. if Mr. Hughes’
employ hent were terminated without cause at December 31,2007, or if he resigned for good cause
at Decerer 31, 2007, he would receive a severance payment equal to $334.770.

In additi on, if Mr. Hughes' employment with the Company or any successor terminates within 18
months after a “change in control” of the Company. as defined under the Employment Agreement
(regardléss of the reason for such termination), Mr. Hughes will be entitled to receive an amount
equal 1othe greater of (i} 36 times Mr: Hughes' monthly base salary (pro-rated based upon his annual
base salary at the date of termination), or (i) three times the amount of Mr. Hughes annual base
salary at|the date of termination, plus three times the aggregate amount of any cash bonuses paid to
Mr. Hughes during the preceding fiscal year. Such amount shall be paid in one lump sum payment
{within 30 days of the termination of Mr. Hughes subsequent to a "Change in Control”). The
Comparly, or its successor, will be required to maintain Mr. Hughes' hospital, health, medical and life
insuranck: coverage during the 36-month period following his termination, unless and until Mr. Hughes
obtains pew employment during such period and such new employment provides for such benefits to
be provided to Mr. Hughes. Alt unvested stock options and stock awards previously granted 1o Mr.
Hughes khall accelerate and immediately vest upon the occurrence of a change in control. Ifa change
in control occurred at December 31,2007, and Mr. Hughes' employment terminated, he would have
been enritled to a payment of $769.993.

Mr. Hughes' employment agreement defines a change in control as including;

*| Any event requiring the filing of a Current report on Form 8-K to announce a change in
control;

*| Any person acquiring 25% or more of the company’s voting power:

*| If, persons who serve on the Board at the beginning of the period fail to make up a majority
of the Board at the end of the period;

«i If the company fails to satisfy the listing criteria for any exchange or which ts shares are
traded due to the number of shareholders or the number of round lot holders; or

< If the Board of the company approves any transaction after which the shareholders of the
company fail to control 519 of the voting power of the resukting entity.

Furthermore, if Mr. Hughes' employment with the Company terminates within |8 months after the
Company consummates a “Significant Acquisition,” as defined under the Employment Agreement
(regardless of the reason for such termination), Mr: Hughes will be entitled to receive an amount
equa! tq the greater of {a) 36 times Mr. Hughes' monthly base salary (pro-rated based upon his annual
base salpry at the date of termination), or (b) three times the amount of Mr. Hughes' annual base
salary at the date of termination, plus three times the aggregate amount of any cash bonuses paid to
Mr. Hughes during the preceding fiscal year. Such amount shall be paid. at the option of Mr. Hughes, in
one lunp sum payment (within 30 days of the termination of Mr. Hughes subsequent to a “Significant
Acquisition”) or over a 36-month period. In the event Mr. Hughes elects to receive such amount
over a 36-month period, the Company will be required to maintain Mr. Hughes' hospital, heatth,
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medical and life insurance benefits coverage during such 36-month period, unless and until Mr. Hughes
obtains new employment during such period and such new employment provides for such benefits to
be provided to Mr. Hughes. In the event Mr. Hughes becomes entitled to the foregoing amounts due
to this termination within 18 months of a Significant Acquisition, all unvested stock options or stock
awards previously granted to Mr. Hughes shall accelerate and immediately vest upon such termination,
Had a Significant Acquisition occurred at December 31, 2007, and M Hughes received a lump sum
payment under these provisions, his severance payment would have equaled $789,993,

“Significant Acquisition” under the Employment Agreement means an acquisition by the Company
pursuant to which, as all ar part of the consideration {for such acquisition, the Company issues to the
shareholders of the acquired entity such number of voting securities as shall equal 25% or more of
the then outstanding voting securities of the Compary. Mr. Hughes' Employment Agreement has a
term of three years; however, for each day elzpsed during the term, a day will be added at the end of
the term 50 that the term will be extended on a rolling basis to be three years at any point in time,
unless either party shall have provided written notice to the other of its desire to cease such
extensions. In addition, the term of Mr. Hughes' Employment Agreement shall terminate immediately
upon the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the Company’s entering into a Memorandum of
Understanding with the FOIC or the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance; (i) a cease-
and-desist order being issued with respect to the Company by the FDIC or the New Jersey
Department of Banking and Insurance; or (jii} the receipt by the Company of any notice under 3
federal or state law which (in any way) restricts the payment of any amounts or benefits which may
become due under Mr. Hughes' Employment Agreement.

The Company also entered into Retention Agreements with each of its executive vice presidents,
Messrs, Bedner, Downes, and Kauchak. Each of the Retention Agreements provides that the executive
may be terminated at any time for “cause” as defined in the applicable Retention Agreement or
without “cause.' In the event that the executive is terminated without “cause” or resigns for “good
cause" (as defined under the applicable Retention Agreement and discussed below), the executive is
entitled to receive a severance amount equal to| 2 months of the executive's then current base salary.
Such amount shall be paid in a lump sum payrnent (within 30 days of the termination of the
executive). In addition, the executive will continue to receive medical, life insurance and other benefits
to which the executive had been entitled at the date of termination for {2 menths, unless and untit
the executive obtains new employment during such period and such new ermployment provides for
such benefits to be provided to the executive. “Good Cause” under the Retention Agreements
includes a material reduction in the executive's duties and responsibilities or any reduction in the
executive's base salary.

In addition, if the executive’'s employment with the Company or any successor terminates within 18
months after a “change in control” of the Company, as defined under the Retenticn Agreements
(regardless of the reason for such termination), the executive will be entitied to receive an amount
equal to twice the executive’s annual base salary at the date of termination, plus the aggregate
amount of any cash bonuses paid to the executive during the preceding fiscal year. Such amount shall
be paid in one lump sum payment {(within 30 days of the executive’s termination subsequent to a
“change in controf”). The Company or its successor will be required to maintain the executive’s
hospital, heatth, medical and life insurance coverage for such 24-moenth period, All unvested stock
options and stock option grants previously granted 1o the executive shall accelerate and immediately
vest upon the occurrence of a change in control,

Furthermore, if the executive's employment with the Company terminates within |8 months after the
Company consummates a "Significant Acquisition,” as defined under the First Amendment to the
Retention Agreements (regardless of the reason for such termination), the executive will be entided
to receive an amount equal to twice the amount of the executive's annual base salary at the date of
termination, plus the aggregate amount of any cash bonus paid to the executive during the preceding
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fiscal year. Such amount shall be paid, at the option of the executive, in one lump sum payment
(within 30 days of the termination of the executive subsequent to a "Significant Acquisition.”) The
Compary is also required to maintain the executive’s hospital, health, medical and life insurance
benefits ‘coverage during such 24-month period, unless and until the executive obtains new
employment during such period and such new employment provides for such benefits 10 be provided
to the ekecutive. In the event the executive becomes entitled to the foregoing amounts due 1o
termination within 18 months of a Significant Acquisition, all unvested stock options and stock awards
previously granted to the executive shall accelerate and immediately vest upon such termination.
“Significant Acquisition” under the Retention Agreements means an acquisition by the Company
pursuant to which, as all or part of the consideration for such acquisition, the Company issues 10 the
shareho(ders of the acquired entity such number of voting securities as shall equal 25% or more of
the then outstanding voting securities of the Company. Each Retention Agreement has a term of
three : however, in the event that the term of the Retention Agreement would terminate at any
tirne after the Company has engaged in substantive negotiations regarding a transaction that would
lead to h change in control, the Retention Agreement shall continue to remain in full force in effect
until the earlier to occur of (i) the effectuation of the transaction leading to the change in control, or
{ii) the termination of the negotiations for the proposed transaction, which would have resuited in the
change {n control, In addition, the term of each Retention Agreement shall terminate immediately
upan 1h| occurrence of any of the following: (i) the Company’s entering into a Memorandum of
Understanding with the FDIC or the New |ersey Department of Banking and Insurance; (ii) a cease-
and-desjst order being issued with respect to the Company by the Bank or the New Jersey

De ent of Banking and Insurance; or (i) the receipt by the Company of any notice under a
federal or state law which in any way restricts the payment of an award or benefits under the
Retention Agreement. New employment provides for such benefits 1o be provided to the executive,
in the ebent the executive becomes entitled o the foregoing amounts due o termination within {8
months|of a Significant Acquisition, all unvested stock options and stock awards previousty granted to
the exetutive shall accelerate and immediately vest upon such termination. “Significant Acquisition”
under the Retention Agreements means an acquisition by the Company pursuant to which, as all or
part of the consideration for such acquisition, the Company issues to the shareholders of the

acquired entity such number of voting securities as shall equal 25% or more of the then outstanding
voting seeurities of the Company. Each Retention Agreement has a term of three years; however, in
the event that the term of the Retention Agreement would terminate at any time after the Company
has enghged in substantive negotiations regarding a transaction that would lead to a change in contro!,
the Retention Agreement shall continue to remain in full force in effect until the earlier to occur of ]
the effeftuation of the transaction leading to the change in control, or (i) the termination of the
negotiations for the proposed transaction, which would have resutted in the change in control. In
additior}. the term of each Retention Agreement shall terminate immediately upon the occurrence of
any of the following: (i) the Company’s entering into a Memorandum of Understanding with the FDIC
or the INew Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance; (i) a cease-and-desist order being issued
with respect 10 the Company by the Bank or the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance;
or (i) the receipt by the Company of any notice under a federal or state law whica in any way
restricts the payment of an award or benefits under the Retention Agreement.




The following table shows the payouts which would be made to each of Messrs. Bedner, Downes and
Kauchak in the event their employment is terminated without cause and in the event that their
employment is terminated following a change in controk

Name Termination without Cause Termination Following
a Change In Control
Alan | Bedner $139,641 $355,370
Michael F. Downes $176,748 $414514
john ). Kauchak $137.696 | $327.360
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Name Fees Earned Stock Option All Other
or Paid in Cash | Awards Awards Compensation Total

(%) ® 0] % (%)
Dave Dallas® 23,700 3730 -0 5.000 32430
Mark Brody @ 11,900 3730 -0- 5,000 20,630
Wayne Courtright @ 23,100 3730 0- 5,000 31,830
Robert Dallas % 17900 3730 -0- 5.000 26,630
Frank Ali & 22,400 3730 -0- 5.000 31,130
Charles Loring & 10800 3.730 -0- 5.000 19,530
Peter Maricondo @ 9,000 3,730 -0- 5.000 17,730
Allen Tucker © 25,300 3.730 0 5.000 34,030

(1) At December 31, 2007. Mr. Dallas held options to purchase 58,685 shares of stock
(2) At December 31,2007, Mr. Brody held options ta purchase 20,28 |shares of stock.

{3) At December 31,2007, Mr. Courtright held options to purchase 3,190 shares of stock.
{4) At December 31,2007, Mr. Dallas heid options to purchase 58,685 shares of stock.
{5) At December 31, 2007, Mr. Ali held options to purchase 26,781 shares of stock

(6) At December 31,2007, Mr: Loring held options to purchase 58,687 shares of stock,
(7} At December 31, 2007, Mr. Maricondo held options to purchase 2,803 shares of stock,
(8) At December 31, 2007, Mr.Tucker held options to purchase 58,685 shares of stock

Directors of the Company do not receive per meeting fees for their service on the Company's Board
of Directors. The Bank's Board of Directors does receive a $5,000 retainer per year. Directors also
receive cash compensation for their service on the Board of Directors of the Bank. Directors receive
$600 for attendance at each Bank Board of Directors’ meeting, and between $200 and $500 for
attendance at each Bank Committee meeting. The Bank has established a deferred compensation
plan permitting directors to defer receipt of these fees. while also deferring tax liabilities on the
payments and earnings thereon. In addition, the Directars are eligible 1o participate in the Company’s
stock bonus and stock option plans. During 2007, the Company's non-employee Directors received
stock options of 6,625 shares each under the Company’s 2006 Stock Option Plan, and 1.050 shares
each of restricted stock under the Company's 2004 Restricted Stock Plan (Bonus Plan). Each of these
grants was subject to a four-year vesting period.

20




Hanager[ent and Director Deferred Fee Plan

Each of the directors of the Company has the option to elect to defer up to 100% of his respective
retainer ahd boad fees. The crediting rate of the deferred account balance is equal to the prime rate
plus 100 Hasis points with a minimum of 4% and a maximum of {0% adjusted annually and
compounded monthly. Each director is |00% vested in his deferred account balance. The retirement
age unded the plan is 65, and the benefit payment is paid in annua! installments for |0 years or as a
ump su | The death benefit under the plan is 100% of the accourt balance paid to the participant's
beneﬁci::jy in annual instaliments for |0 years or a ump sum if death occurs prior to retirement,
During the Company's fiscal year ended December 3 1. 2007, Mr. Brody received interest on his
account t%a!ance of $5,348.32.

Interest of Management and Others in Certain Transactions; Review,Approval or
Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons

The Bank has made in the past and, assuming continued satisfaction of generally applicable credit
standards, expects 1o continue to make loans to directors, executive officers and their associates (ie.,
corporatjons or organizations for which they serve as officers or directors. or in which they have
beneficial ownership interest of ten percent or more). These loans have all been made in the
ordinary|course of the Bank’s business on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and do not
invelve rhore than the normal risk of collectability or represent other unfavorable features.

Other then the ordinary course fending transactions described above, which must be approved by
the Banll's Board under bank regulatory requirements, all related party transactions are reviewed and
approved by our Audit Committee. This authority is provided to our Audit Committee under its
written ¢ . In reviewing these transactions, our Audit Committee seeks to ensure that the
transactjon is no less favorable to the Company than a transaction with an unaffiliated third party.
During 7006 and 2007, there were no transactions with related parties which would not have been
require }to be approved by our Audit Cornmittee. and there were no related party transactions not
app by our Audit Committee.

In additjon, the Company leases its Clinton, New |ersey, headquarters from a partnership in which
Messrs. David Dallas and Robert Dallas are partners. Under the lease for such facility, such
partnership received aggregate rental payments of $549,247 in 2006 and $553.000 in 2007. The
Company befieves that such rent payments reflected market rent and that such lezse reflects terms

that m]' comparable 10 those that could have been obtained in a lease with an unaffiiated third party.

Required Yote

DIRECTORS WILL BE ELECTED BY A PLURALITY OF THEVOTES CAST AT THE
ANNUAL MEETING WHETHER IN PERSON OR BY PROXY.

E.umrmuus!eﬂsm
THE :BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE
“FOR" THE NOMINEES SET FORTH ABOVE.
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OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors is not aware of any matters other than those set forth in this proxy
statement that will be presented for action at the Annual Meeting. However, if any other matter
should properly come before the Annual Meeting, the persons authorized by the accompanying proxy
will vote and act with respect thereto in what, according to their judgment, is in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders,

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

To the extent that this proxy statement has been or will be specifically incorporated by reference into
any other filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the sections of this proxy statement entitled "Report of the Audit Committee” (to the extent
permitted by the rules of the SEC), "Board of Directors Report on Executive Compensation™ and
“Performance Graph" shall not be deemed to be so incorporated, unless specifically otherwise
provided in such filing.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION [é(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Section | 6(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. requires the Company's executive
officers and directors and persons who own more than 10% of the Comparny’s Common Stock (who
are referred to as "Reporting Persons™) 1o file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with
the SEC. Reporting Persons are required by SEC regulations 10 furnish us with copies of all Section
16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on the Company's review of the copies of such forms received or written
representations from Reporting Persons, the Company believes that, with respect to the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007, all the Reporting Persons timely complied with all applicable filing
requirements.

SUBMISSION OF SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS
FORTHE 2008 ANNUAL MEETING

Any shareholder who intends to present a proposal at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
must ensure that the proposal is received by the Corporate Secretary at Unity Bancorp, Inc., 64 Old
Highway 22, Clinton, New |ersey, 08809, no later than December 15, 2008, if the proposal is
submitted for inclusion in the Company’s proxy materials for that meeting pursuant to Rufe (4a-8
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or is otherwise submitted.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 0-K

The Company will provide by miail, without charge, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K, at your
request. Please direct all inquiries 1o the Company’s Corporate Secretary at (908) 713-4308.
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Operations Manager -
North Plainfietd Office

Jonathan Sheehy
Assistant Vice President
Senior Network Administrator

Linda Vvail
Assistant Vice President
Manager - Philipsburg Office

Edward Venerus
Assistant vice President
Mortgage Loan Qfficer

Alan Waters
Assistant Vice President
Portfolio Review Manager

Sally Wilson
Assistant Vice President
Deposit Services Manager

Linda McDermott
Corporate Secretary
Executive Assistant

Lauren Christle
Assistant Secratary
Loan Closer

Karin Greco
Assistant Secretary
Commergial Loan Closer

Rebecca Vanselous
Assistant Secretary
Loan Closer

Judy Floyd
Agsistant Treasurer
Electronic Banking Services Manager

Arlene Goczalk
Assistant Treasurer
Consumer Loan Servicer

Lisa Masterson
Assistant Treasurer
Fhoating Branch Operations Manager




Branch Locations

Clinton

Colonia

Edison
Flemington
Highland Park
Linden
Middlesex

North Plainfield
Phillipsburg
Scotch Plains
South Plainfield
Springfield
uUnion

14 Whitehouse

15 Forks Township, PA
16 William Penn, PA
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17 Washington

Loan Production Offices

| Creat Neck, NY
Jacksonville, FL
Miaml, FL

West Palm Beach, FL
Richmond. VA
Chicago, IL

BANCORP<INC

Corporate Offices
64 Old Highway 22
Clinton, NJ 08809
800.618.BANK




